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Chairman’s Statement
B X

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of Directors (the
“Director”) of Perfect Group International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to present to
you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2020.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

The principal business of the Group is designing,
manufacturing and sales of high-end fine jewellery
(primarily mounted with diamonds) (the “Jewellery
Business”) and the investment in and development and sales
of properties for the Group’s integrated and comprehensive
industry park located at 1st Ring Road South Extension
Foshan, Guangdong Province, the PRC (the “Property
Business”) as an integrated and comprehensive industry

park (the “Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park”).

Jewellery Business

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
suffered from the weak buying behavior of the customers
in the Dubai region and the impact of the outbreak of the
2019 novel coronavirus (“Covid-197). Most of the shows,
fairs, and exhibitions normally held during the year were
either cancelled or postponed. The quarantine and travel
measures imposed by worldwide countries restricted the
visits of our sales staff to customers. In response to this, the
Group has implemented stringent control over costs. This
policy will continue in the coming months to cater to these

adverse business circumstances.
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The Group has started off after the year-end in the
wholesale supply chain business of the jewellery and related
products in internet marketing in the PRC by forming a
60% owned company in the PRC. The registered capital
of the Company is RMB 5 million and the Group will
contribute RMB 3 million. The Group will utilise the
experience of other partners to expand the jewellery
business in the PRC market. Further details of the business
can be found in the announcement of the Company dated
4 March 2021.

Property Business

The construction work on the Perfect Group Jewellery
Industry Park has already been fully completed. Pursuant
to the Group’s accounting policy, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
property and the Group has the present right to payment
and consideration is probable. Since the second half of
2018, the Group has started to deliver the completed units
in the Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park to customers
and revenue is recorded in accordance with the adopted
accounting policy. The Group has sold almost all of the
units that the Group intended to sell. The Group will sell

the remaining units once necessary approval is obtained.

The Group has also leased out part of the units in the
Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park. The management
company of the Group which is responsible for the
maintenance and repairs as well as providing a safe and
habitable environment in the Perfect Group Jewellery
Industry Park is now in full operation. These two
operations will continue to provide a stable rental and

management fee income to the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
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APPRECIATION LY |

On behalf of the Group, I would like to thank the ANREAEE > HEFFE - AEHS
effort from my fellow directors, senior management and MERANBRBELEBREN —FhH
employees of the Group during this difficult year, and the A A T A A L VR R R 3l RO G R
trust and support from our shareholders, business partners (¥BAEBHEMEFN MG -

and customers.

Kan Kin Kwong FE
Chairman fifj {8 Y6
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021 W > 202143 H29H
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately HK$366.9 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$787.2 million),
representing a significant decrease of approximately
HK$420.3 million or 53.4% from the corresponding year
of 2019. The significant decrease in the Group’s revenue
was primarily due to the decrease in recognition of revenue
from sale of properties in the PRC as a significant number
of units were sold and recognised as revenue in the year
ended 31 December 2019. Moreover, due to Covid-19,
revenue from the Jewellery Business also decreased, which
reflected the downward trend experienced in the first half
of 2020 continued to impact the second half of 2020 as

expected.

The revenue of Jewellery Business and Property Business
represents approximately 38.7% and 61.3% respectively of
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ki B o e

Jewellery Business
Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the Jewellery Business during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$141.8 million (for the year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$321.3 million), representing a
significant decrease of approximately HK$179.5 million or
55.9% over the corresponding year of 2019.

The sales to Hong Kong and Dubai decreased significantly
at approximately HK$76.0 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$207.5 million)
and approximately HK$40.1 million (for the year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$107.4 million),
respectively, representing a decrease of 63.4% and decrease
of 62.7%. The sales to the PRC was approximately
HK$25.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$6.4 million), representing an increase
of approximately HK$19.3 million, or 301.6%, over the
corresponding year of 2019. The significant increase in the
sales to the PRC was mainly due to the Group’s continuous

development of the wholesale jewellery market in the PRC.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit decreased significantly from approximately
HK$85.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately HK$28.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$57.1 million, or 66.7%, which is in line with the
sales generated from Jewellery Business. The gross profit
margin was approximately 23.7% in the Hong Kong and
Dubai Region which was decreased when comparing
with the corresponding year of 2019 (for the year ended
31 December 2019: approximately 26.6%). However, the
overall gross profit margin was dragged down as during the
year ended 31 December 2020 the PRC market constituted
a greater portion of the revenue for the Jewellery Business
and their gross profit margin was significantly lower as the

Group was at the stage of exploring the market.

Property Business
Revenue, gross profit and gross profit margin

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$225.1 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$465.9 million) was recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2020 for the Property Business.
The significant decrease in revenue was mainly due to
the decrease in number of units of properties delivered
to customers as a significant number of units were sold
and recognised as revenue in the year ended 31 December
2019. The gross profit recognised for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$123.9 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$208.8 million) and the gross profit margin was
approximately 54.9% (for the year ended 31 December
2019: approximately 44.8%). The main reason for the
increase in gross profit margin was mainly slight increase
in selling price and lowering in estimated construction cost
in 2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ki B o e

Overall gross profit and gross profit margin

Overall gross profit decreased significantly from
approximately HK$294.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately HK$152.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a
significant decrease of approximately HK$142.0 million,
or 48.2%. Included in the gross profit was, approximately
HK$28.5 million related to the Jewellery Business,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$57.1 million
or 66.7%, and approximately HK$123.9 million related
to Property Business for the year ended 31 December
2020, representing a significant decrease of approximately
HK$84.9 million, or 40.7% as compared to the
corresponding year ended 31 December 2019.

Other income

Other income increased from approximately HK$10.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately HK$14.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, an increase of approximately HK$3.5
million or 33.3%. The increase was mainly due to the
increase of rental income and government grants of
approximately HK$1.7 million (for the year ended 31
December 2019: Nil) in respect of Covid-19 related
subsidies provided under the Employment Support Scheme
of the HKSAR government.

Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly include gain from fair
value changes upon transfer of properties held for sale to
investment properties of approximately HK$16.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$36.5 million)
offset by the impairment provision on trade receivables
of approximately HK$8.5 million (for the year ended 31
December 2019: approximately HK$1.4 million).
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Finance costs

Finance costs of approximately HK$1.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31 December
2019: approximately HK$3.5 million) related to interests on
the bank loans for the operation of the Jewellery Business

and the Property Business.

Selling and distribution costs

The decrease in selling and distribution costs from
approximately HK$16.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$6.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$9.7 million, or 58.8%. This mainly
due to the decrease in show expenses amounting to
approximately HK$5.8 million as jewellery shows, fairs
and exhibitions normally held during the year were either
cancelled or postponed and, travelling, customs and
declaration expenses amounting to approximately HK$2.8

million.

General and administrative expenses

The decrease in general and administrative expenses from
approximately HK$55.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$42.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing a decrease of
HK$13.6 million, or 24.5%, was mainly due to the decrease
in salaries of approximately HK$7.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as a result of reduction in salaries

for both staff and Directors.

Profit for the year

As a result of the above factors, profit after taxation for the
year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK$76.5
million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$182.7
million), representing a decrease of approximately
HK$106.2 million or approximately 58.1% over the
corresponding year of 2019.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B ki B o e

Financial position
Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2020
of approximately HK$79.9 million (as at 31 December
2019: approximately HK$110.3 million) mainly represents
leasehold land and buildings of approximately HK$77.1
million (as at 31 December 2019: HK$107.2 million)
and plant and machinery, furniture and fixtures and
motor vehicles of approximately HK$2.8 million (2019:
approximately HK$3.2 million). The drop in balance in
leasehold land and buildings was mainly due to the transfer
of leasehold land and buildings of approximately HK$34.2

million to investment properties during the year.

The Group has also changed the use of certain property
of approximately HK$90.4 million (as at 31 December
2019: approximately HK$111.7 million) from leasehold
land and buildings to investment properties for leasing to
independent third parties for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Current assets

Current assets as at 31 December 2020 decreased
by approximately HK$294.7 million, or 35.4%, to
approximately HK$536.6 million (as at 31 December
2019: approximately HK$831.2 million). The decrease was
mainly attributable to the transfer of properties held for
sale to cost of properties sold. Inventory of approximately
HK$161.7 million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$186.4 million) is mainly comprised of raw materials,
work in progress and finished goods. The major reasons for
the decrease of bank balances and cash to approximately
HK$81.2 million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$173.8 million) were the results of cash generated from
operation amounting to approximately HK$48.8 million,
payment of tax amounting to approximately HK$68.0
million, repayment of bank loans of approximately
HK$51.6 million and payment of dividend of approximately
HK$27.0 million.
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Current liabilities

Current liabilities decreased by approximately HK$335.5
million or 66.0%, to approximately HK$173.2 million (as
at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$508.7 million).

Trade and other payables which amounted to approximately
HK$51.0 million as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31
December 2019: approximately HK$127.8 million)
comprised of trade payables of approximately HK$31.7
million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$113.3
million) and accruals and other payables of approximately
HK$19.3 million (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HKS$14.6 million). Accruals and other payables mainly
consist of payable of staff salaries and benefits and
provision for certain construction obligations. Trade
payables decreased from approximately HK$113.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
HK$31.7 million as at 31 December 2020 mainly due to
decrease in construction costs in line with reducing in level

of activities during 2020.

Included in contract liabilities was mainly the deposit
received from customers of properties in the PRC,
amounted to approximately HK$75.4 million as at 31
December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
HK$256.7 million). The main reason for the decrease of
contract liabilities is because of the transfer of control of

the completed properties to the customers.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$536.6 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$831.2 million) and current liabilities
amounted to approximately HK$173.2 million (as at
31 December 2019: approximately HK$508.7 million).
Accordingly, the current ratio, being the ratio of current
assets to current liabilities, was approximately 3.2 as at 31
December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
1.6).

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gearing ratio

Based on total borrowings divided by equity, the gearing
ratio was Nil (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
8.8%).

Foreign exchange exposure

During the year, certain group entities have foreign
currency denominated sales and purchases; and monetary
assets and liabilities which expose the Group to foreign
currency risks on the currencies of HKD, USD, RMB,
and AED. The sales are primarily made in USD while the
expenses, including purchase of raw materials are mainly in
USD and HKD with immaterial portion of cost, primarily
being staff cost and factory overheads, in RMB.

Despite the expenses are mainly settled in HKD and
USD and substantial portion of the sales and expenses are
made in either USD or HKD, with HKD and AED being
pegged with the USD, the impact of fluctuation of USD
to the operational and financial performance would be
immaterial, hence the Group’s exposure to currency risk is
not significant.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties in addition to those known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

Business and financial risks

(i) The profitability and financial position may be
materially and adversely affected if any of our major
customers ceases their business relationship with us;

18  Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %545 5 [0 42 i A Bl 23 7]

B AR ffE bR

W EEAER UG A EARAMELR
REE(Jr2019F12 H31H : £8.8%) °

B BE JE, K3

R ETHREBEERUSIEETER &
W e B R AR T T B A BRI T - 3R
JC > N R B ] g v a8 B A A1 BE L
B o S EZ LR T AT > T B S (B 4%
JE A4 R SR 1 AR T 2 DL SE o0 B il oo AT
17 K D R 2 B RAS (£ 2 5 B TORUAR e T
Joig A8 ¥ R B 32) DL R W STAT o

filh 4 B S 3 2 DL T K SR T A A DL R R
oy B 8 8 L B S DL 3R T sl T AT > R
#E TC L Bl Wk g a4 gk B SE ST b 8 - R 0T
4 W 3B 4 S B B REBLIE B AR EOK
o e ST DI O 1 A N S N

FERBE AR EHE

AL BB IRDL - KBS - EB R
DA XL AR EATRER TR -
OO SR P R 2 R By B A R E
L2 o B A 5 B 0 5 B I AS R (H AT
AE 7 R AR 88 15 3 K 2 HoAth Ja By I A A g A
FOb > AR HAb R B AR E R R -

ST I S 15 I B

() A {7 2 B 7 5 AR O BRI M A9 3 75
18 > 8RB ) B B 5 R UL T e %
RAFIR 8



(i) COVID-19 has adversely affected our jewellery
business in the 2020 year and may continue to affect
us. In addition, the business and financial position
may be materially and adversely affected if there is a
global economic downturn, epidemic and pandemic
similar to the coronavirus (COVID-19), in particular,
the Middle East, China and Hong Kong, the locations
from which the Group’s jewellery business customers
are principally sourced and China where the Group’s
property business is located; and

(iii) We are susceptible to material and adverse change
in both Hong Kong and the PRC tax laws or
unfavourable interpretation regarding apportionment
claim of profits in crossborder processing business and
on our revenue generated in the PRC.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, mainly interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings (see note 28 for details) at
variable interest rates. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Company has taken out insurance policy to enhance the
recoverability of trade debtors. The Company has also received
all the monies for the units sold in the Property Business and
should have no difficulties on the recoverability of any possible

outstanding balance due from these purchasers.
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Charge on assets

No Group’s assets was charged as at 31 December 2020 (as
at 31 December 2019: approximately HK$237.8 million).

Dividend policy

The Board intends to create long term value for the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) through
maintaining a balance between dividend distribution,
adequate cash flow and reserve to meet its working capital
requirement and capturing growth opportunities. The
Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account the current financial performance,
the future financial requirements and any other factors that
may deem relevant to the Company. The Board may decide
the frequency of dividend payment and further declare or
recommend any special distributions. Dividends may be
declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means
that the Board considers appropriate. The payment of
dividend is also subject to compliance with applicable laws
and regulations including the laws of Cayman Islands and
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
The Board will review this dividend policy from time to
time and there can be no assurance that dividend will be

paid in any particular amount for any given period.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have
significant commitments contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements (as at 31 December
2019: Nil).

Material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, save
as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

and affiliated companies.
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Events after the reporting date

The establishment of a 60% held joint venture company
by the Group for the development of the wholesale supply
chain of the jewellery and related products in internet
marketing in the PRC. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 4 March 2021.

Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately
115 employees (2019: approximately 133 employees) in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The total salaries and related
costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$23.2 million (2019: HK$32.4 million).

The Group offered competitive remuneration package as
an incentive to staff to improve the work performance. The
Company has share option scheme in place as a means to
encourage and reward the eligible employees’ (including
the Directors) contributions to the Group’s performance
and business development based on their individual
performance. The employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary are assessed by reference to their work performance,
working experiences, professional qualifications and the

prevailing market practice.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong, aged 61, was appointed as the
Director in June 2015 and was appointed as the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive officer, and designated
as the executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Kan is the
founder of the Group and was appointed as a director of
HK Perfect in October 1986. Mr. Kan is also the director
of Perfect (BVI) and Perfect Group HK, the wholly-
owned subsidiaries. Mr. Kan is mainly responsible for
managing the overall operations of the Group and planning
our business development and strategies, in particular,
overseeing the business activities of the Group, supervising
the operations and resources allocation of the Group and

driving the Group to attain performance targets.

Mr. Kan has over 30 years of experience in the fine
jewellery industry. Currently, Mr. Kan is the president
of the Hong Kong Gold and Silver Ornament Workers
& Merchants General Union, the honorary president of
the Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association
and the 20th honorary president of the Hong Kong Jade
Association, Mr. Kan was also awarded “2017 Honorary
Fellows” by the Professional Validation Centre of Hong
Kong Business Sector on 13 July, 2017, in recognition of

his contribution to the local jewellery industry.

Ms. Shek Mei Chun, aged 57, the wife of Mr. Kan, was
appointed as the executive Director in August 2015. Mrs.
Kan was appointed as a director of HK Perfect in March
1990. Mrs. Kan is mainly responsible for managing the
sales operations of the Group, in particular, overseeing
the sales activities of the Group, leading the sales team
to attain sales targets and devising sales plans based on
the varying demands and customer behaviour in different

markets.

Ms. Shek has over 25 years of experience in the fine

jewellery industry.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chung Chi Keung, aged 59, was appointed as the
executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Chung joined HK
Perfect as an accountant in March 1990. Mr. Chung was
appointed as a director of HK Perfect in November 2006.

Mr. Chung was awarded a higher stage certificate for
proficiency in accounting and a certificate of proficiency
in cost accounting, both issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry in 1982 and 1985 respectively.
Mr. Chung also passed the intermediate examination of
the Association of Accounting Technicians in December
1991. Mr. Chung has over 30 years of experience in the

accounting industry.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. FAN Chor Ho, SBS, BBS, JP, aged 79, was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in December 2015. Mr. Fan currently also acts as a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Fan was an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong International Construction Investment Management
Group Co., Limited (Formerly known as Tysan Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange stock
code: 687) from August 1993 to July 2020. He was a non-
executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited from 3 April 2000 to 15 April 2003. He was a
member of the Advisory Committee to the Securities and
Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and again serving
in the same capacity since 2001 until 2007. He was holding
appointments on Government boards and committees,
including chairman of the Chinese Medicine Council of
Hong Kong from 13 September 2005 to 12 September
2011. He was awarded the Badge of Honour in 1991 and
was made a Justice of the Peace in 1993, and was awarded
Bronze Bauhinia Star in July 2005 and the Silver Bauhinia
Star in July 2011.
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Mr. Lee Ka Wing, aged 47, was appointed as the

independent non-executive Director in May 2020.

Mr. Lee, graduated from the business school of The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 1995. He
also obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2001 and
a master’s degree in Accounting from Curtin University in
2003. He has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2008 and a member
of CPA Australia since 2007. He also holds the Chartered
Financial Analyst qualification from CFA Institute and is a
member of the CFA Society HK.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance and has ample experience
in initial public offerings, takeovers and privatization.
Currently, he acts as a co-head of investment banking
and a sponsor principal of Zhongtai International Capital
Limited. Before joining Zhongtai International Capirtal
Limited, he worked at GF Capital (Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick, aged 65, was appointed
as the independent non-executive Director in December
2015.

Mr. Wong received a master’s degree in electronic
commerce from Edith Cowan University in Western
Australia in February 2002. Mr. Wong has been a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since June 1991 and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants in England and Wales since December 1993.
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Mr. Wong has over 40 years of experience in accounting,
finance, audit, tax and corporate finance with an
international certified public accountant firm and listed
companies in the United Kingdom, New Zealand, Hong
Kong and Thailand. From April 1996 to March 1999, Mr.
Wong was an executive director of Hwa Kay Thai Holdings
Limited (currently known as China Solar Energy Holdings
Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 155). From January 2001 to January 2011, Mr. Wong
was the chief financial officer and company secretary of
China Infrastructure & Logistics Group Ltd. (formerly
known as CIG Yangtze Ports PLC), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1719 (since 29 January 2018)),
and has been an independent non-executive director and a
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee
and nomination committee of such company since April
2014 and the chairman of the nomination committee of
such company since October 2015. Mr. Wong had been the
chief financial officer of APAC Resources Limited (stock
code: 1104), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since
January 2011 and also acted as the company secretary of
the company between April 2011 and December 2011 and
since February 2013 until he resigned from such positions
in July 2016 and served as a consultant to the company
between August 2016 to October 2016. Mr. Wong had
been the chief financial officer of Asia Investment Finance
Group Limited (currently known as Amber Hill Financial
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 0033), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, since 18 September 2017 and
also acted as the company secretary and authorized
representative of such company since 25 September 2017
until he resigned from such positions on 3 November 2017.
Mr. Wong has been an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and the risk management
committee and member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of Wah Sun Handbags International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2683), a company listed
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on the Stock Exchange, since 22 January 2018. Mr.
Wong has been an executive director of CF Energy Corp.
(formerly known as Changfeng Energy Inc. (stock code:
CFY), a company listed on the Toronto Venture Exchange
(TSXV), since 22 February 2019, an executive director
and member of the risk committee after his redesignation
from his former roles as an independent non-executive
director, chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
nomination committee and the remuneration committee of
Da Sen Holdings Limited (stock code: 1580), a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, since 26 November 2020;
and an independent non-executive director and chairman
of the audit committee of Burwill Holdings Limited
(Provisional Liquidators Appointed) (stock code: 24), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 14 September
2020 and 20 October 2020 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management Personnel

Other than the Directors, the senior management team
together with the executive Directors, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of the Group. The following
table sets forth certain information in respect of our senior

management personnel:

RN BB

mEEHAR

B HE S A o R AR B B B B AT g 9
ALEEBOHEERRL - TRBEIARE
HAEHNBWA TER:

Date of
appointment as

Date of joining HK senior management
Name Age Perfect/the Group Present Position personnel Key role and responsibility
MR %E/ BZEBRS
¥ L AL H i Bk CEINCLLR FEAMERRE
Mr. Tam Chun Wa 58 7 February 2017 Chief financial officer and 7 February 2017 Responsible for financial
EEEEa 5855 20174217H company secretary 201742778 reporting and compliance

ERMBERAARE

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 58, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017 and a director of some subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Tam is mainly responsible for financial
reporting and compliance. Mr. Tam holds a master degree
of business administration from University of Sydney and is
also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants. Mr. Tam has more than 30 years
of experience in the areas of auditing, accounting, tax,
investment banking and company secretarial works. He was
the executive director of Chinasing Investment Holdings
Limited, a company the Shares of which was listed on the
main board of Singapore Exchange Limited from 2009 to
2015, and chief financial officer and company secretary
of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited, a company the
Shares of which is listed on the Growth Enterprises Market
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, responsible
for the merger and acquisition activities from 2016 to
2017. Mr Tam also worked for some listed companies in
Hong Kong prior to these engagement and currently, Mr.
Tam is an independent non-executive Director of Green
Energy Group Limited, being a company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 979.

AR B R R

WO e S8 0 R20174F2 A7 H # &
ERHARNFZEREBBE - Ar#ERT
HAREALNFZHEMNE AN ESR &
TETFTEATMBERR LG HEE - #k
ARAERERELHEEE 20 N5
e A A g - W e F A & R En
W astMi A g2 g8 - FL AR
gEt - BB ERT R AR ME T/EHE
IR B A 8304 K€ B o 1R 20094F E 20154 -
?BZ?%Chinasing Investment Holdings Limited
(L B A 07 58 I 3% 28 5 BT A BR 24 m) £ 4R B
) 1 BAT # F > JR20164F £ 20174F - K B
MR SE PR R A A CHE iy i 7 s B G
5 5 BT A R A w AL SE M B ) 89 R BB
BERAFRME > BEMEER - EEER
W25 BT MEROR s A T Ed A F R
KHH BAeEAAKARER K ERER
N S AT E R s 5% A AR B 2SI
b By Rek979 -
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 to all
Shareholders.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and those of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 are set out on pages 83 to 86 of

the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend

The Group did not declare any interim dividend for the
six months ended 30 June 2020 (2019: HK$0.01 was
declared and subsequently paid on 17 September 2019).
The Directors propose the payment for a final dividend of
HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Closure of Register of Members

In order to establish the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to the proposed final dividend, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited,
at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange
Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no
later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 10 June 2021. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 11 June 2021 to Wednesday, 16 June 2021, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. Subject to the approval
by the Shareholders on the proposed final dividend at the
annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 7 June
2021, the final dividend will be paid on or around Tuesday,
22 June 2021 to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Wednesday, 16
June 2021.

Business review

Schedule 5 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
requires companies to include a business review in the
directors’ report. Specifically, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance requires a business review to cover a number of
areas which are also approved by the board of directors and

included in this report as follows:

1. A fair review of the Group’s business

Pages 11 to 17 of this report

2.  Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group

Pages 18 and 19 of this report

3. Important events after the reporting date affecting the

Group Page 21 of this report

4. Indication of likely development of the Group
Pages 8 to 10 of this report
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Segment Information

The executive Directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, regularly review revenue
analysis from the sales and manufacturing of Jewellery
products, including rings, earrings, pendants, bangles,
necklaces and bracelets, and by location of delivery to
customers and development and sales of properties. The
executive Directors considered there were two operating
activities which were manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products and development and sales of properties. The
operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies conform to Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and is regularly reviewed by the
executive Directors. The executive Directors review the
overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group as a whole
to make decisions about resources allocation. Accordingly,

two analysis of this operating segments are presented.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
216 of this report. This summary does not form part of the

consolidated financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 87 to 89 and
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements,

respectively.
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Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had a reserve
of approximately HK$382,619,000 (2019: reserve of
approximately HK$412,666,000) in its distributable
reserves, calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

Major customers and suppliers

Sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 14.2%
and 36.0% of the Group’s total revenue for the year,
respectively. The purchases made by the Group from its
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 19.5% and 45.7% of the Group’s total

purchases for the year, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the
Directors, their close associates, nor any Shareholders who
owned more than five percent of the Company’s issued
share capital, had any beneficial interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers or suppliers during the year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out

in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Directors and directors’ services contracts

The Directors who hold office during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun
Mr. Chung Chi Keung

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Lee Ka Wing (appointed on 1 May 2020)
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick

Each of the executive Directors has renewed a services
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 4 January 2019, which may be
terminated by, not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either party on the other and is subject to
termination provisions therein and provisions on retirement
by rotation as set forth in the articles of association of the

Company (the “Articles of Association”).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
renewed/entered into a letter of appointment or a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from 4 January 2019 or the
date of appointment, subject to retirement by rotation
and reelection at annual general meeting set forth in the
Articles of Association and until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party

on the other.
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No Director has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the listing of securities on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the “Listing Rules”) and all of them are considered to be

independent.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third
of the existing Directors shall retire from office, at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Wai
Keung Frederick and Mr. Chung Chi Keung will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors and Supervisors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or an associated company (if made

by the Company).

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ liabilities have
been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure from the business of the

Group.
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Directors’ interest in contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, no contract of
significance to which the Company or its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest subsisted at the year ended

31 December 2020 or at any time during the year.

Continuing connected transactions

On 3 August 2018, Perfect Group HK renewed the existing
tenancy agreement (the “Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement”)
with HK Perfect, pursuant to which Perfect Group HK
continues to lease premises from HK Perfect for a term
of three years commencing on 5 August 2018 for the
purpose of the Group’s offices in Hong Kong. The terms
of the renewed tenancy are similar the expired agreement
except that the rent has been increased from monthly rent
of HK$290,000 to monthly rent of HK$350,000. The
transactions contemplated under the Hong Kong Tenancy
Agreement are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Aggregate amount for
the financial year ended
31 December 2020
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Annual Cap amount

the financial year ended
31 December 2019

B, £20194F12H31H Ik
L i - il o (L

Lease of premises from Hong Kong Perfect

Jewellery Company Limited (Note)
Ie] £ 8% TR B A FR 2~ =] AR R P (Bf )

Note: Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery Company Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong. It is an associate of Mr. Kan Kin
Kwong, a controlling shareholder, an executive Director, and a

connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions

and confirmed that:

(1) the terms of the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement
are on normal commercial terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and

the Shareholders as a whole;
(2)  the proposed annual caps are fair and reasonable; and

(3) the continuing connected transactions contemplated
under the Hong Kong Tenancy Agreement are and
will be conducted in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group and in the interests of the

Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

According to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules”. The auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”)
has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance

with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Biographies of directors and senior
management

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 22 to 26 of this report.
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Controlling shareholders’ interest in
contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed — “Continuing
connected transactions” of this report, there was no
contract of significance to which the Company or its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which any of the controlling sharcholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) had a material interest subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

Non-competition undertaking by controlling

shareholders

Each of the controlling Shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of

non-competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Company dated 22 December 2015 of

the Prospectus (the “Prospectus”).

Non-competition undertaking by executive
directors

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the
executive Directors have become effective from the Listing
Date.

Each of the executive Directors has made an annual
declaration in respect of his/her compliance with the terms
of non-competition undertaking from the Listing Date to

the date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors have complied with
the non-competition undertaking and the non-competition
undertaking for the period set forth in the paragraph above
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its

terms.
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Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Share option scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set

out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure of interests

Interests of Directors and chief executive
officers

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company, its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO”))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies.
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Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the

Company

Name of Director/
chief executive officers

Capacity/nature of interest

Number of shares
(Long Position)

A ) A BT = 23 22— Al Y 3 2 A

Approximately
percentage of
shareholdings in
the Company

Al A 2> W ik HE

B EETHRABEAS Y/ VR E Rk Bty ¥ H (4 A7) BE #1782 e
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr. Kan”) Interest of controlled 886,959,000 shares (note 1) 66.64%
flfjfa S e 2B (T e 2k D) corporation 886,959,000 % (Fff 5:1)

2 5 ) 1 R 45

Beneficial owner 10,077,000 shares

X EDN 10,077,000 %

Beneficial owner 1,350,000 shares (note 3)

g X XN 1,350,000 % (Bff 5% 3)

Interest of spouse 1,260,000 shares (note 4)

e 1 HE 2 1,260,000 B (Kff 53:4)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung Interest of controlled 30,375,000 shares (note 2) 2.34%

(“Mr. Chung”) corporation 30,375,000 1% (Fff 5:2)

sEE e A ([8E e A4 2 YR T RE A

Beneficial owner 1,260,000 shares (note 3)

Ha AN 1,260,000 /B (Bff 5% 3)
Ms. Shek Mei Chun (“Ms. Shek”) Interest of spouse 898,386,000 shares (note 5) 66.64%
aFE2LLTaL ) e {5 HE 45 898,386,000 /% ([l 5£5)

Beneficial owner 1,260,000 shares (note 3)

Ha AN 1,260,000 B (Bff 5 3)
Mr. Fan Chor Ho Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.07%
R Rl e JLEE ZEDN 900,000 % (Fff 3E3)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick Beneficial owner 900,000 shares (note 3) 0.07%

ORI

R X ZEUN
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Notes:

Save

Among these 886,959,000 shares, 729,000,000 shares, 57,339,000
shares and 100,620,000 shares are held by Immaculate Diamonds
Limited, King Jewel Limited and Classic Sapphire Holdings
Limited, respectively. The entire issued capital of Immaculate
Diamonds Limited and King Jewel Limited are owned by Mr. Kan.
50% of the issued capital of Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited
are held by Mr. Kan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company held by Immaculate
Diamonds Limited, King Jewel Limited and Classic Sapphire
Holdings Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Emerald Holdings Limited, the
entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chung. Under the
SFO, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the shares of the
Company held by Classic Emerald Holdings Limited.

These underlying shares represent the shares of the Company to
be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company to the Directors or chief executive pursuant to the share

option scheme of the Company.

Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, Mr. Kan is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company which may
be issued upon the exercise of the share options granted by the
Company to Ms. Shek.

Mr. Kan and Ms. Shek are spouses. Under the SFO, Ms. Shek is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company held by
Mr. Kan and all the shares of the Company in which Mr. Kan is

deemed to be interested.

as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their

associates had any other interests or short positions in any

shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations as recorded in the register required

to be

kept under section 336 of the SFO.

-
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Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons or
corporations, other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company disclosed above, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register of the substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

Ordinary shares of one-third Hong Kong cent each of the

By

R20204F12 A31H » % BA 28\ AR 48 3 5
T W 8 o 191 233606 i £7 B 1 £ B R R B
TR > SRR N1 N ool /N1 G O
EOINT/NET I A o O S QN = I 73/ D7
OS] 2 B Ay B A B B 4y o A R R SR B

A ) A T = 23 22— Al Y 3 2 A

Company

Approximately
percentage of
Capacity/nature Number of shares shareholdings in
Name of shareholder of interest (Long position) the Company
i A% 2> ] I B 1
JB Sk £ty HE 25 T H Jie o 0 H (4F £7) BEZIA o b
Immaculate Diamonds Limited Beneficial owner 729,000,000 shares 54.00%

Immaculate Diamonds Limited Ha AN 729,000,000 5 JIZ {73

Richemont Asset Management Limited Beneficial owner
Richemont Asset Management Limited T AN

Chow Chin Yui Angela Interest of controlled
JEE=RLS corporation

32 P il o B A
Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited Beneficial owner

Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited FiWHA N

Chan Wing Sum Interest of a controlled
B 7K #% corporation

2 YR T RE A
Classic Amber Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
Classic Amber Holdings Limited FEi#A N
Luo Jacky Interest of a controlled
< R corporation

2
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91,460,997 shares 6.77%
91,460,997 i % 1y

93,436,782 shares (note 1) 6.92%
93,436,782 I 13 (B 5E1)

100,620,000 shares 7.45%
100,620,000 B f& 14>

100,620,000 shares (note 2) 7.45%
100,620,000 8 B 173 (it 352)

101,250,000 shares 7.50%

101,250,000 i% B 1y

101,250,000 shares (note 3) 7.50%
101,250,000 8 % 4> (Fff 53)



Notes:

These shares are held by Richemont Asset Management Limited
and Cachet Asset Management Limited, the entire issued capital of
which is held by Ms. Chow Chin Yui Angela, Under the SFO, Ms.
Chow Chin Yui Angela is deemed to be interested in all the shares
of the Company held by Richemont Asset Management Limited
and Cachet Asset Management Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Sapphire Holdings Limited, 50%
of the issued capital of which is held by Mr. Chan Wing Sum.
Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Sum is deemed to be interested in
all the shares of the Company held by Classic Sapphire Holdings
Limited.

These shares are held by Classic Amber Holdings Limited, the
entire issued capital of which is held by Mr. Luo Jacky. Under the
SFO, Mr. Luo Jacky is deemed to be interested in all the shares of
the Company held by Classic Amber Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified

by any persons or corporations, other than the Directors

or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or

short

positions in the shares or underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as of the

date of this report.

Emolument Policy

The

Group’s employees are selected, remunerated and

promoted based on their merit, qualifications and

competence.
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The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
remuneration model for determining the emoluments of
the Directors. This model stipulates that the remuneration
committee of the Company shall make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The remuneration
committee of the Company would take into consideration,
among other things, the duties and responsibilities of the
Directors and senior management and prevailing market

conditions when determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to
provide incentives to eligible persons, including Directors

and employees of the Group.

Related Party Transactions

Particulars of the Company’s Related Party Transactions
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and the Company has complied
with the relevant requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in relation to these transactions. Continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” above. Related party
transactions other than those disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transaction” are fully

exempt connected transactions as defined under the Listing

Rules.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association or
the Laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

Shareholders.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of listing
securities

Neither the Company nor any subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the

Company has maintained sufficient public float.

Corporate governance report

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can
be found in the Corporate Governance Report set out on

pages 44 to 60 in this report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forth coming annual

general meeting of the Company.

Review of Results by Audit Committee

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Kan Kin Kwong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company strives to attain and maintain a high
standard of corporate governance as it believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Board
attributes a high priority to identifying and implementing
appropriate corporate governance practices to ensure

transparency, accountability and effective internal controls.

Code on corporate governance practices

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the code provision under the CG Code,
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code as explained below. The Company will continue
to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate

to the operation and growth of the business of the Group.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the role of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The role of the chief
executive officer is performed by Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (“Mr.
Kan”), who is also the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Kan as the founder of the Group has extensive experience
and knowledge in the business of the Group. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman of the
Company and chief executive officer of the Company in the
same person, namely Mr. Kan, has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more
effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the

Group.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the

securities of the Company.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company is satisfied that the Directors have complied with
the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for formulating business strategies
and monitoring the performance of the business of the
Group. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the
decisions are taken by the Board. All Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective

functioning.

The Board constituted by six members, including three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive

Directors.
The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Chung Chi Keung
Ms. Shek Mei Chun

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Lee Ka Wing (appointed on 1 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick

Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May 2020)
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Biographical details of each Director and relationship
between board members are set out on pages 22 to 26 of

this report.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms
of the guidelines. One of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses the appropriate professional accounting

qualifications and financial management expertise.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
and Indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers
covering the costs, losses, expenses and liabilities arising
from the performance of their duties. The insurance policy
covers legal action against its Directors and officers to
comply with the requirement of the Code. During the year,
no claim was made against the Directors and officers of the

Company.

46 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %55 [ 5 B4 A BR 2 7

HERZIBEFEEREFEG N A Z MR
RO A i 2225 26H o

HBOLF AT EF ORI LR AIEE3.13
i 2 B 5E B2 2 e wR KL AT A W oLk 2 AR R
MERE - ARXFAR AT ARSLIFRTES
AT A O B AR 53130 2 oL 1 4R
51> HARESZ 165138 MmN+ - Hoop
OB PTEFEAREEXEGAE
1% K BB LR -

O N ARk B AT DR B K

AN FEIE O A B RS R
EHENERBRERE MERENE
TR i A 2 A ~ Bk > B KAR -
METFHHE ARRECHEEFT LG
AW B L R AT W B T AT RE & T 3k
1T8) - RAFR - AN R 3 % m R B
7l 2 RAE o



Corporate Governance Report
e FERE: e

The attendance records of each Director at the various £ FHNAR N A £20204F12 A31H 1E 4
meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 JEHI B AT 2 2 g w2 I F R Bk
December 2020 are set out as follows: W

Attended/Eligible to Attend

H /9 4 % M
Remuneration Audit  Nomination Risk
General Board  committee  committee  committee management
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings meeting

Himz #h% A% B
R¥kf #%e6d  ReEeR  HEER  AEER HHER

Executive Directors nEs

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong it 01 204 0/0 0/0 l) 1)
M. Chung Chi Keung ASHLE 1 414 1 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. Shek Mei Chun hE4t 11 4/4 0/0 0/0 0/0 1

Independent non-executive Directors B v 3 117 % %

Mr. Fan Chor Ho i fE 11 4/4 0/0 0 11 0/0
M. Lee Ka Wing FRREE 11 303 0/0 11 0/0 0/0
M. Wong Wai Keung Frederick HRELE 11 414 11 0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai FREEE 0/0 1 1 1N 11 N

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers BUNEFHAHEEHNEFT CHERMERE
and related materials, and the advice and services of B MR EAR AR Z AR E (A RBEF]D)
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company RAtE R R RE - KW ESBBER T =
Secretary”), and has the liberty to seek independent R THEDZH > BHAHANT RKE - &
professional advice at the Company’s expense if so 0 8 5 0 g A B b R R R A 7 A
reasonably required. Directors will be continuously updated EE R 2 HRERE > DI A A RS
on the major development of the Listing Rules and other B AEFr R IR EE R WL -

applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance

and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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Board Committees

The Board has established four committees, namely
the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the risk management committee (the
“Risk Management Committee”). The table below provides
the membership information of these committees on which

certain Board members served:

HEFELHG

EHETRANMZES > PHlAFELE
BEa((HFEZEe)) RAZBg(RA
ZEG) - FMZEG(HFMZEEG) LK
EpEHZEG (MR EREEZEF]) -
REMETEFGRAEZFZREHA
&AL 19 B Ao :

Risk

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Management

Committee Committee Committee Committee

Directors A B

#H EHRZAG WAZARG HiMZAe HAZHEA

Mr. Kan Kin Kwong i f 56 AE - C - C

Mr. Chung Chi Keung FEEEE - - M -

Ms. Shek Mei Chun AER L+ _ _ _ M

Mr. Fan Chor Ho bR e M M - -

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick WL C - M -

Mr. Lee Ka Wing (appointed on ZREKAE (20205 M M © M
1 May 2020) SHIREZ )

Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (resigned on Z B S R (20204 M M C M
1 May 2020) 5HIH & F)

Notes: M 2

C — Chairman of the relevant Committee

M — Member of the relevant Committee
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and Rule 3.22
of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the Audit Committee have been modelled off the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Fan Chor
Ho, Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May 2020), Mr. Lee
Ka Wing (appointed on 1 May 2020) and Mr. Wong Wai
Keung Frederick. Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick is the

chairman of the Audit Committee.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee include:

—  Consider the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, the audit fee
and terms of engagements, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

= Review the financial statements and provide material
advice in respect of financial reporting of the Group;

and

—  Opversight of internal control procedures and risk

management of the Group.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held no less than
two times a year. Two meetings of the Audit Committee

were held during the review year.

Corporate Governance Report
SEE R

HHEEE

KAFACHILEEZEES > WRE EH#
I 553,21 J 3,226 DA = T 7 o EL ok A i 1) o
FZ B G R E O 2 ST EIW‘
SC il FT o Ik RE A AT AR N A R B 5C
JIT 4 il LA

REEEAFEE B EE SR =2 B IR
178 F 0 e AR~ 2 R RCE AR (2020
ESH1H BEAE) ~ 2K 558 4 (20204571
H M 5 {F) K o & o o A= 41 B - #5008 9 %
ERESZEEGLER -

FAERE N TR
- FBIERAT - A KRR SN AZ B

% & GiNSES LT QNS g
e 5% W% BT ) S

— RS R R KB AR B R
RMUEERER &

— EREOR SRR R PR KR B
bLi

FHZAGEFHEN T’J\ﬁ/‘ﬁﬁ{ﬁ\’&’%
FAZTR GNP B AFEERTT WRKE#E -

2020 Annual Repore 4 FE#Hi 49



Corporate Governance Report
WSEE R

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference with effect from 14 December 2015 and
throughout the year, comprises one executive Director,
namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Mr. Li
Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May 2020), and Mr. Lee Ka
Wing (appointed on 1 May 2020). Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The duties of the Nomination Committee shall be:

= Review the structure, size and composition (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement

the Company’s corporate strategy;

—  Identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated

for directorships;

—  Assess the independency of independent non-executive

Directors;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive; and

—  Review the board diversity policy (including
the gender, age, cultural background, education
background, skills, knowledge and experience) as
appropriate and to review the measurable objectives
under the board diversity policy and the progress
of the attainment of the objectives, so as to ensure
effective implementation; and make disclosure of its

review results in the corporate governance report.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held no
less than once a year. One meeting of the Nomination

Committee was held during the review year.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Diversity Policy”) which embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Pursuant to the Diversity Policy, the Company would try
to seek board candidates with Company’s business model
and specific needs, including (but not limited to) gender,
regional and industry experience, skills, knowledge and

educational background.

The Board will review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress

made towards achieving those objectives.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and throughout the year, comprises one
executive Director, namely Mr. Chung Chi Keung and
two independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li
Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May 2020), Mr. Lee Ka Wing
(appointed on 1 May 2020) and Mr. Wong Wai Keung
Frederick. Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (up to 30 April 2020) and
Mr. Lee Ka Wing (since 1 May 2020) are the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee.
The duties of the Remuneration Committee shall be:

—  Make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure

for developing remuneration policy;

—  Review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate

goals and objectives;
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= Make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive

Directors and senior management;

= Make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive Directors;

—  Consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

—  Review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with contractual terms and is

otherwise fair and not excessive;

= Review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate; and

—  Ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) is involved in

deciding his/her own remuneration.
Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held not

less than once a year. One meeting of the Remuneration

Committee was held during the review year.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of CG Code, the
remuneration of members of senior management by band

for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration Band

ot I s 1

Corporate Governance Report
e FERE: e

WA EE R ZsF B SCEBLSIE
#H E£2020F12H31H (L FEE > @5 Mg
A& B ¥ AR B 2 R s

No. of
Individuals

N

Nil - HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

0%1,000,000%5 T

1,000,001% 7€ % 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001%5 7T 2,000,000 #5 7T
2,000,001 JC £ 2,500,000%5 7T
2,500,001%5 7€ £ 3,000,000 % JC
3,000,001% 7T % 3,500,000 % TG
3,500,001%5 7€ £4,000,000%5 7T

Risk management committee

The Risk Management Committee was established on 14
December 2015 and throughout the year, comprises two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kan Kin Kwong and
Ms. Shek Mei Chun and one independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lee Ka Wing (appointed on 1
May 2020) and Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (resigned on 1 May
2020). Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is the chairman of the Risk

Management Committee.

The duties of the Risk Management Committee shall be
monitoring the Company’s exposure to sanctions law risks
and its implementation of the related internal control

procedures, and shall include:

—  Reviewing and approving all relevant business
transaction documentation from suppliers or
customers or potential customers from any
country that is subject to sanctions (the “Relevant

Counterparty”);

—  Reviewing the information (such as identity
and nature of business) relating to the Relevant
Counterparty to the contract along with the draft

business transaction documentation;
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—  Checking the Relevant Counterparty against the
various lists of restricted parties and countries
maintained by the United States of America, the
European Union, the United Nations and Australia,
including, without limitation, any government,
individual or entity that is the subject of any United
States Department of Treasury’s Office of Foreign
Assets Control-administered sanctions which lists
are publicly available, and determining whether the
Relevant Counterparty is, or is owned or controlled
by, a person located in any country that is subject to

sanctions or a sanctioned person;

—  Reviewing on a semi-annual basis internal control
policies and procedures with respect to sanctions law

matters; and

— If any potential sanctions risk is identified, or
if the Committee considers necessary, retaining
external international legal counsel with necessary
expertise and experience in sanctions law matters for

recommendations and advice.

Meetings of the Risk Management Committee shall be
held no less than once a year. One meeting of the Risk

Management Committee was held during the review year.

Continuous professional development

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the year, the Group has
provided training materials for all the Directors to keep
them abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory
and corporate governance. The Group, together with its
compliance adviser, continuously updates the Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate

governance practices.
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Company secretary

Mr. Tam Chun Wa, aged 58, has been appointed as the
chief financial officer, the company secretary and the
authorised representative of the Company, all with effect
from 7 February 2017. Mr. Tam holds a master degree of
business administration from University of Sydney and is
also a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, CPA (Australia) and Institute of Singapore
Chartered Accountants. He has fulfilled the 15 hours of
relevant professional training requirement under the Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
Directors aim to present a clear and understandable
assessment of the Group’s financial position and prospects.
The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the going
concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and
interim reports, inside information announcements and
other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules,

and reports to the regulators.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect
to the financial reporting are set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report of this report.
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Disclosure of Long Term Basis for Generating
or Preserving Business Value

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s corporate strategy
and long term business model is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of

this report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the maintenance of a stable
and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group and also responsible for reviewing
their effectiveness. The Board, with the assistance from
the Audit Committee, conducted annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems as required by the Code Provisions,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, and including reviews on the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programs and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial report function for the Period

and considered they were effective and adequate.

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within
any of the safe harbours as provided in the SFO. Before
the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality
cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements or
circulars are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or
false or misleading through the omission of a material fact
in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and

negative facts.

56 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %55 [ 5 B4 A BR 2 7

WoE A R B R AR E
B e

A 45 B 4 36 R g S R s 3 B R ) R
iy S o3 AT B A o 2 T o ) R T
T o ww S o T LA e

JE B B B N R G

R AR MR R AR E A S R
o A P L oA R B PR JR B RIR B A B
RNk  EFEGEFELZRETWHB T
MR <5 B Ao ST P B E A A TR B
T R R S B 4 o RE Y SO AT A BE A AT
Bt R A SR R O R B
PAK Ja o 7 B BE - SR AR g 5
AR K S s B i AE D7 T A B IR
AR~ BTHEE - &8 - HIIREREE
58 5 A T A RN A o

A B OB NT A g L 0 B R (TR o
B Aok ] 1) Be b TR IR B SE o AS B T B AE
AEUVE AATHOB O o Al R A R B ER
RIS M B R R A B R 1 P R E 2
A AT 22 4 i 8 B TR 3 BR Oh o AS SR I TE 1
AR TH K BE A B B AT SRR ZIHE R
BRE o A 4R B RS S K AR P N
W > SRz H BT RET AN - & R )
NRAPEEZHE o AL AR
B B BT A R R T S AN
R B E v Bl A REREREEM
J&§ AR BB R R S T LA B R o2 5 5L
SIE R B AR IR T K A T A
SFRENPE -



Conflicts of Interest Declaration

The Group adopted conflict of interest declaration policy
as one of the important internal control procedures.
Employees are required to provide annual declaration of
conflict of interest, and strictly comply with the policy to
ensure that the Group and its customers, business partners,
Shareholders, employees and business community of the
transactions and dealings are in line with the highest

standards of business conduct and ethics.

Whistleblowing Policy
The Group established a whistleblowing policy for

employees under confidentiality to file complaint and
report any suspected misconduct, fraud and irregularities,
in an orderly manner. A designated director is assigned for
receiving, reviewing complaint and report, to investigate, to
draw conclusion and to make appropriate recommendations
for improvement, and inform the relevant departments

senior management to implement corrective action.

The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Board engaged Apec Risk Management Limited to
conduct an independent review of the systems of internal
control and risk management of the Group. Weakness
and inadequacies identified during such review together
with recommendations for improvement thereon had
been accepted and implemented in full by the Company
and reviewed by the Audit Committee. Based on this,
the Company is of the view that the systems of internal
control and risk management in place for the year ended 31
December 2020 is sufficient to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Auditor’s remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
engaged external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, to

provide the following services:

A% B il Y

s 8 E20204F12 310 1 4 B > A4 H
Z AT SN A B A B o BH R O & R AT
2 4 51 R %

Service Fee

Mk B

HK$

T

Audit services ¥ B IR 5 1,040,000
Tax advisory i 5 L 35,000
Interim review services Hh 1) 2 B I 5 308,000

Investor relations and communication with
shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with the Shareholders. The Company
believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is the

key to enhance investor relations.

The Company has established several communication
channels, including (a) the annual and extraordinary
general meetings which provide a forum for Shareholders to
communicate directly with the Board; (b) printed corporate
documents mailing to Sharcholders; (c) announcement
disseminating the latest activities of the Group on the
web-sites of the Company and the Stock Exchange; and (d)
the Company’s web-site providing an electronic means of

communication.
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Annual General Meeting

The Board and senior management are well aware of their
important tasks of acting on behalf of the interests of all
the Shareholders and raising the Sharcholders’ returns. The
Board considers that AGM is an important opportunity for
direct communication with the Shareholders. Code A.6.7 of
the Code Provisions require that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the Shareholders. The Board encourages all the
Shareholders to participate in the AGM where the members
of the Board and external auditors will be present and

communicate with the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Rights

How Shareholder Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
the Board may whenever it thinks fit call an extraordinary
general meeting. Any one or more Sharecholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to

the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures by which Enquiries may be Put to the
Board

Shareholders may, at any time, direct enquiries to the
Board. Such enquiries can be addressed to the Company
Secretary in writing by mail to the Company’s registered
office in the Cayman Islands at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands or its principal place of business in Hong Kong and
headquarters at 26th Floor, YHC Tower, No. 1 Sheung
Yuet Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong,.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a new resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the above
paragraph heading “How Sharecholder Can Convene an

Extraordinary General Meeting”.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person
for Election as a Director

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the relevant
documents must be validly served on the Company’s
registered office in the Cayman Islands or the place of
business in Hong Kong and headquarters within the
requisite period of time. The full details of the procedures
for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director were posted on 31 December 2015 on the web-site

of the Company at http://www.hkperjew.com.hk.

Significant Changes in Constitutional
Documents

As of the date of this report, there were no changes made

to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
“Report”) of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) provides an update information on
the environmental, social and governance work of the
Group from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the
“Reporting Year”). The Report is principally prepared by
reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and key performance
indicators with reference to Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Reporting Scope

The Group operates its principal business in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”) and
the PRC and therefore the Report only covers the Group’s
operation in these two areas. The Report also focuses on

the following two subject areas during the Reporting Year:

A. Environmental (emissions, use of resources
consumption, together with the environmental and

natural resources)

B. Social (employment, health and safety, development
and training, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility, anti-corruption

and community investment)

For details of the Group’s corporate governance, please also
refer to the Corporate Governance Report included in the
Annual Report 2020 of the Group.
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A. Environmental

62

1.

Emissions

The Group’s operation does not result in
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions
or, discharges into water and land. The wastes
created during the operation are mainly
generated from electricity consumption and
usage of vehicles fleet. The Group has placed
efforts in energy savings such as replacing aging
lamps with LED lamps, installing blackout
curtains to reduce energy loss, set up policy to
encourage staff to switch off lights and electrical
appliances when they are not in use. As for
vehicles fleet, the Group encourage the use of
hybrid or electric vehicles whenever possible.
During the Reporting Year, the Group did not
receive any notification on non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have significant

impacts on the Group.

During the Reporting Year, most of nitrogen
oxides (NOx) and sulphur oxides (SOx) were
emitted from fuel consumption of electricity and
vehicle fleet. During the Reporting Year, it is
estimated that 2,416 litres (2019: 9,200 litres) of
petrol and 0.9 million kWh (2019: 2.2 million
kWh) of electricity was consumed. The Group
estimated that there were 2.17 kg (2019: 12.5
kg) of NOx and 0.03 kg (2019: 0.2 kg) of SOx
were emitted during the Reporting Year. The
Group has set policy and guideline to maintain

the efficient use of electricity and use of petrol.
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During the Reporting Year, the greenhouse gas AR AR RN AN AR E R
(“GHG”) emissions from the operation is set out ZHREERBEHEREWMT:
below:
Scope #i [# (tonnes of CO2-e)
(2w — A AL B &)
Scope 1: Direct GHG emissions ﬁﬂ 1 R R YR 6.54
Scope 2: Indirect GHG emissions 0 [F 2 ¢ [R 3R AR HE 716.76
Scope 3: Other indirect GHG emissions %B B3 HoAh R & R
P ik 26.66
Total HE 749.97
Intensity (tonnes/revenue HKD$’000) = R % R (AWM T
JLA) 0.002

Note:

A1 A AR A TR A B PR

Scope 1: Refers to direct emissions from vehicles owned by

the Group;

%;%2 C AR S ) T R T EE AR A ] B
T s

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of
purchased electricity consumed by the Group;

Scope 3: Additional disclosure for the Reporting Year, and 3 A PR AR RE Ry R B ER - FEK
is mainly consisted of business air travel by employees. U5 7% fE B 7 A B th b 2 ??
During the Reporting Year, the hazardous A A RN A AR ] AR
and non-hazardous waste generated from the MWHEELEEBEEYWNT:
operation is set out below:
Category i Jjll
Hazardous waste (tonnes) EE Y (M) 899
Non-hazardous waste (tonnes) B Y (A M) 16
Hazardous waste intensity HEBEDEE
(tonnes/revenue HKD$°000) (A ME AT oo s ¥t A) 0.002450
Non-hazardous waste intensity mEREEYEE
(tonnes/revenue HKD$°000) (A WA T oo B Uk A) 0.000044

The primary hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes generated from our production processes
are waste water and commercial wastes
respectively. To ensure the operation of our
factory is in compliance with the applicable
environmental law, we have entered into a waste
water treatment agreement with a qualified water
treatment service provider which is responsible
for collecting the wastewater produced in our
factory’s production process.

RMELEEBEDPEENTESR
= I E R FE W) o) B BE K T T
SEBE W) o By AR T ORGCE E A
HEANREE > RMEH %
o VA B K B IR T 6 HE 7 AT
SR K B B o % A W R IR
B TR A R R h O AR B K o
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Use of Resources

To achieve the goals of environmental protection
and reduction of its production costs, the Group
has placed the following energy conservation
measures in the production plants and the office:

1.  Adjusted the central air-conditioning
control system to reduce electricity
consumption.

2. Electricity-saving fluorescent tubes are
installed to save energy and reduce energy
consumption.

3. Stipulating employees to turn off the lights
and air-conditioning system after office or
when not in use.

4. Encourages employees to use electricity
or hybrid motor vehicles and provides
facilities whenever possible.

During the Reporting Year, the electricity
consumption by the Group was approximately
0.9 million kWh (2019: 2.2 million kWh).
During the report year, Hong Kong operation
has consumed approximately 0.1 million kWh
(2019: 0.1 million kWh) and PRC operation
has consumed approximately 0.8 million
kWh (2019: 2.1 million KWh). The water
consumption by the Group was approximately
28,990 cubic meters (2019: 73,000 cubic
meters). Most of them are consumed in PRC as
Hong Kong office is for general administrative
and sales purpose. The Group, same as last year,
has ensured the consistent efficiency in the use
of water. The water in PRC are mainly supplied
by the state-owned water utility company and
have no issue in water sourcing.

Packing material the Group used are light
and recyclable. The packing material used
during the Reporting Year was mainly
plastic and paper estimated to be less than
20 kg.
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Environmental and Natural Resources

The operation of the Group does not

constitute any material adverse effects on the

environmental and natural resources. The Group

promotes green office to raise the environmental

protection awareness of the employees and

implements the following measures to achieve

our goal:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Encouraging employees to treasure food

and reduce food wastes;

Staff canteen provides healthy meal with
less oil and salt to encourage our employees
to pay attention to healthy diet and reduce

consumption;

The Group strives to facilitate paperless
office with more frequent use of electronic
forms, electronic photo picking system and

recycled papers;

The Group compares the utility expenses
each month to look for ways to reduce
the impact on natural resources and

environment; and

Incorporate the green concept when
designing the production plants and the
Perfect Group Jewellery Industry Park.

BN~ e RGN

BB K HRE R

A A B R e N M BRI A
IR IR BT T R A
A B [ A ) Ak 0 0 3= LUR R
B BROR ko 0 PR BCRAE 1 it
PA%E 2 AN B B AR

©)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

HEMETEERBVRER
7/

B T f & 2 4l 2 B
il R B B R B I R Kk

B B LD R
A 4R B HfE B JE AR O A

EoBEMHETREE &
TAH B R St K16 BR A
FAI

A 55 ) L B H B 2 SRt

BA 32 > DA% SR J7 ik WK 3 A
RERMBIEN LB K

AT 2R MR B KPR B Bk E
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Social Employment and labour Practices

In order to create a united and harmonious
professional team, the Group provides the employees
a fair working environment, and enhance their
knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work
and thereby their work efficiency.

Employment

To retain talents, the Group develops and provides
incentives to its employees based on their performance
and productivity. In terms of recruitment, promotion,
remuneration, working hours, leaves and benefits, the
Group ensures the conditions of which are competitive
and in compliance with relevant laws. The Group also
provides Share Option Scheme to give incentive to

staff to share the growth of the Group.

The Group pursues equal opportunities in terms
of recruitment policy. The Group also ensures the
fairness of process without any violation of the
local laws and regulations such as Sex, Disability,
Family Status and Race Discrimination Ordinances,
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

The Group focuses on investing in talents and
offering a promising career path. Thus, internal re-
designation and promotion of potential employees
will be first considered to fill any vacancies within the
Group. Promotion criteria are based on various factors
such as employees’ working performance, leadership

and cooperation.
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The Group ensures the employees’ remuneration
be competitive in the labour market. Moreover,
in assessing the rate of annual salary adjustment,
the Group takes into account the annual financial
results, make reference to the economic environment,
inflation, salary trends and industry salary reference,
and base on appraisal reports and work performance

of the employees to make revision.

The Group ensures that the requirements of relevant
laws and guidelines have been compiled with. The
Group participated retirement benefits scheme in
Hong Kong and PRC such as Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws
of Hong Kong, Pension insurance system (%t % & fi
ifil ) in PRC.

The Group also provides its employees with a quality
working environment. A spacious staff canteen and
floor lounge in the office building are available for
the employees to use. The Group organizes staff
buffet and dinner from time to time and distributes

gifts to employees at festivals.

BN~ e RGN
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group employed
approximately 115 full-time employees. The total
number of employees classified by gender, function

and age group was as follows:

Total number of employees by gender:

#H ZF20204F12H31H » 7 4 H 4
1154 28R B o % M Al - Bk AE M 4
5 40 B )4 0 R B AR BT

vk H 23 1 R B AR

2020 2019
20204 20194
Male PoRa 48 69
Female B/ 67 64
115 133

Total number of employees by function: i W e By 1) B B AR B
2020 2019
20204 20194
Directorate and managerial staff HEHRLEHAA 12 13
Clerical employees SCH R B 103 120
115 133

Total number of employees by age group:

e A e AL ) B (R B A

2020 2019

20204 20194F

18 to 30 18 & 305 10 20
31 to 50 31 %505 71 83
Over 50 5058 Db 1 34 30
115 133

Total number of employees by geographic region:

S BEEA INDE IS e

2020 2019

20204F 20194F

Hong Kong & 30 41
PRC L alE 85 92
115 133
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The employee turnover rate by gender:

BN~ e RGN

e P 10 45 1 1 B o 2 %

2020 2019

20204 20194F
Male LExcs 61.54% 4.35%
Female g/ 32.06% 3.13%

The employee turnover rate by age group

He A i AL A ) 23 B R B R R

2020 2019

20204 20194F
18 to 30 18 % 305% 87.50% 5.00%
31 to 50 31 E 5005 52.63% 3.61%
Over 50 505 WA b 9.38% 3.33%

The increase in turnover rate is mainly due to the
restructuring of staff composition in Hong Kong and
PRC as a result of the impact of Covid-19 during the
Reporting Year.

In respect of dismissal policy, the Group offers those
underperforming employees or those who make
general mistakes a chance to improve. Should the
employee not make considerable improvement within
a reasonable time, the Group then considers to dismiss
them and handle it in accordance with the labour

laws and regulation in Hong Kong and PRC.

The Group was not aware of any material non-

compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations.

NN U B DA o =N e oY S
Covid-19MI R 8 > HF#LPEKA T
ZEMEE TR -

PR BRI S > AEE g REA
FaERE— B ERS T X
EWE > R B ORAER & B R A ]
BROE o A B IR 5 8 R 3 12 TR
W B B 85 Tk ) B AL iR B o

A 4R ) I 4 5% B AT A7 B B & M B
55 ik Bl Je G
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Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide the employees with a
safe and harmonious working condition. The Group
provides suitable training to the employees whenever
possible. The staff are also provided with pay leave
whenever they attend suitable course to upgrade their

work ability and performance.

The Group has appointed a staff who is responsible
for the promotion, training, supervision and
management of occupational health and safety to

enhance the employees” occupational safety awareness.

During the Reporting Year, the Group did not record
any work-related injury or fatality or loss days due
to injury and was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

would have any significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group provides employees at all levels with all-
around technical training, to ensure the employees
proactively equip themselves with skills and thus
attain outstanding performance. The Group also
provides the employees with relevant courses and
seminars to enable them to grasp the work-related
knowledge, skills and attitude to keep abreast of the

latest trend.
The training activities include:

(i) organize training courses and seminars on a

regular basis for the employees to attend;

(ii)  distribute training materials on a regular basis to

the employees for them to review;

(iii) arrange external professional training courses for

the employees to attend.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [ 58 B 422 i A BR 2 7

il R B 42 4

AL LR BT 2 R
TAEBR BT o A 4 8 F v A 5 8 B 2 it
G o B T2 4 o F2 IR
ERMAEF R URsH T/ER
&S

AEBMOREE TABTHE - HI-
BEE R ERE LK 2R D
12 = IR B 3 2 e

TSt AR A > AS B TSI B AT AT AT
BTH TGRS T8E THEKTE
H > IR 48 5% AT o] B =% SO B 9% 1
Je B HL A B i N R R B
HHE -

B S Byl

AR J A AR B R A T R A RE B
Al > LR R B BT N A A B RE DL
EH ORI o ALE 5 B RS
el R Rl R - R B4R TR A B
HUEE > HRE RN RE R o BRI A

B BTG B A 4%

Q) T A OB W A AR AR Kl It g
B2

(i) 7 IR 5% 5 9 ORI BB

(iii) % YRR B 20 oh A B 5 R

2 o



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

33.9% (2019: 48.7%) in terms of number of staff had
received formal training course during the Reporting
Year. The rest were provided with reading materials,
business updates notes, circulation of study materials
etc to enhance their knowledge. Of this 33.9%
(2019: 48.7%), 28.2% (2019: 13.9%) were senior
management and the rest of 71.8% (2019: 86.1%)
were other employees. 51.3% (2019: 49.1%) of this
33.9% (2019: 48.7%) were male and 48.7% (2019:
55.4%) were female.

Training sessions and context of training were provided
to staff varied on the needs of the staff and varied to
each staff based on the relevancy and needs of the
operation. On average, they received 8.1 hours (2019:
19.1 hours) of training. On average, 10.6 hours (2019:
21.7 hours) and 6.3 hours (2019: 16.9 hours) of formal
training course were received by male and female staff
respectively. Senior staff received approximately 32.5
hours (2019: 48.9 hours) of formal training while the
other employees received approximately 5.2 hours (2019:
14.3 hours) of formal training. Staff are provided with
training sessions based on the needs of the job to keep
current about policies, procedures, and knowledge.
During the Reporting Year, training sessions decreased

due to the impact of Covid-19.

Labour Standards

The Group has formulated policies to ensure all
employees and job applicants are entitled to fair
opportunity and treatment. The Group strives
to complies with the local laws and regulation
throughout the recruitment and employment process.
The Group prohibits any employment of child labour
under Employment of Children Regulations (Chapter
57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Employment
of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations (Chapter
57C of the Laws of Hong Kong). The human
resources department in each location is instructed
to inspect the identity of the applicants to ensure any
employment of child labour. The Group has a clear
staff manual to prohibits forced labour and ensure

legal and volunteer employment of all employees.

BN~ e RGN
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During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with relevant labour laws and
regulations that would have any significant impact on the

Group.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The principal business of the Group is in the design and
manufacturing of high-end jewelry and therefore precious
metals are the major resources consumed by the Group.
Significant portion of raw materials and processing
materials (in term of dollar value) are sourced in Hong
Kong and these suppliers sources their products through
India or China. During the Reporting Year, there are
approximately 11, 8 and 5 major suppliers from Hong

Kong, PRC and other places respectively.

The Group pays much attention to the suppliers. During
supplier selection process, it takes into account the price,
stability of goods as well as reputation. Afterwards, the
department head and management head will review and
approve in order to ensure the procured equipment and raw
materials come with good quality at reasonable price. The
Group also reviews the quality of stock or materials with

sophisticated machines from time to time.

Product Responsibility

Due to the nature of our products, the Group seldom
subjects to recall for safety and health reasons. The Group
always reviews the quality of the stock with sophisticated
machines from time to time, before, during and after the

production.

The Group has team of management, including the sales
director, to look after the complaints received and in case
the Group received any complaints, the Group targets
to resolve the issues with customers within the shortest

possible time.
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The Group understands the importance of intellectual
property and makes every effort to safeguard and protect
the intellectual property. By the same token, the Group
places much emphasis on the infringement of other
intellectual property rights. During the Reporting Year, the
Group had not been subject to any material claim in this

matter.

The Group keeps reminding the employees of and
emphasizing the importance of safeguarding the security
of personal data. When collecting and processing such
data, the Group will comply with the local laws, regulation
and guidelines to protect the privacy. The Group also has
measures designated to prevent unauthorized access to

personal data such as password and code.

During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that would have any significant impact on the

Group in respect of the privacy issue.

Anti-corruption

The Group recognizes the importance of the ethical
conducts and integrity of each director and all employees
in order to maintain a fair, honest and integrity-based
business environment. The Group has formulated a clear
code of conduct in respect of the prevention of bribery,
employees’ interests, conflicts of interest, prevention of
extortion and fraud in the employee handbook. Besides,
the Group has an anti-bribery policy in place to further
provide clear guidelines in respect of anti-bribery and
maintaining honesty and integrity. Such policy applies to
all directors and employees of the Group, together with
the agents acting on behalf of the Group. The Group
reminds the employees by internal notice to avoid bribery
and acceptance of advantages as and when appropriate.
Furthermore, the Group encourages its employees to report
any suspected corruption, bribery or misconducts through
the whistle-blowing mechanism established by the Group.
Such reports are kept confidential and the Group has
established a procedure to protect the whistleblowers from

unfair treatment.
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During the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that would have any significant impact on the
Group, nor any corruption litigation against the Group or

its employees.

Community
Community Investment

The Group participates in and promotes various
community and volunteer activities for helping the needy in
the society, promoting environmental awareness, fostering
and facilitating industry development, with an aim to
contribute to the society and fulfill our corporate social
responsibility. During the year the Group donated a total
sum of approximately HK$39,000 to a number of charity
bodies.

During the Reporting Year, the Group has participated a
number of activities organized and appointed staff with pay
to participate in related industry associations such as Hong
Kong Gold and Silver Ornament Workers and Merchants
General Union and Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’
Association. The Group also encouraged staff to participate
in the other industry-related charity or social welfare
activities by providing monetary sponsorship or pay leave
to staff.
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Deloitte

To the shareholders of
Perfect group international holdings limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Perfect Group International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“the Group”) set out on pages 83 to 215, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

consolidated financial statements of the current period.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit

of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and

in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Allowances of inventories - finished goods

We identified allowances of inventories
- finished goods as a key audit matter
as the Group had significant amount of
finished goods which are fine jewellery
products as at the end of the reporting
period. These finished goods may be
subject to impairment due to fluctuation
in selling prices. In determining the
allowance to be made on finished goods,
management considers the current market
conditions, estimated selling prices of
the finished goods, movements and
subsequent sales of the finished goods.

The Group’s finished goods as at
31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$114,250,000 as disclosed in note 19

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s

allowances of inventories - finished goods included:

¢ Obraining an understanding from the
management and Valuer about the valuation
techniques, significant assumptions adopted, key
inputs and data used in the valuations; and

¢ Testing the subsequent sales of finished goods,

on a sample basis, to supporting documents;

¢ For certain high value items, obtaining an
independent valuation report and evaluating
the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity as well as the
reasonableness of key assumptions adopted in

the valuation model;

¢ Discussing with management and evaluating
the impairment assessment by management on
finished goods with little or no subsequent sales
after the reporting period; and

¢ Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation
of the net realisable value of finished goods
with reference to the current market conditions,
estimated selling prices, movement and
subsequent sales of finished goods.
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Key Audit Matters — continued
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of properties held for sale

Independent Auditor’s Report
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[oH 3 7 A% 3 JH -
LEETA Y BEREGA R RE G R RN
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We identified the impairment assessment ~ Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment

of properties held for sale as a key audit  of properties held for sale included:

matter as the amount is significant and
represented 24% of the Group’s total
assets as at the end of the reporting
period. These properties are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. In
determining the net realisable value of
these properties, management considers
the expected future selling prices and
costs necessary to complete the sale of
these properties, with reference to the
valuations performed by an independent
firm of qualified professional property
valuer (the “Valuer”) for certain
properties. The valuations involved
significant management’s judgement and
estimation in relation to estimating the

future selling prices.

The Group’s properties held for sale
as at 31 December 2020 amounted to

HK$206,521,000 as disclosed in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
and management of the Group about the
valuation techniques, significant assumptions
adopted, key inputs and data used in the
valuation of properties held for sale;

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer; and

Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs used
by the Valuer and management of the Group by
comparing with relevant market information of

similar properties.
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Key Audit Matters — continued

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We identified the valuation of investment ~ Our procedures in relation to the valuation of

properties as a key audit matter due to  investment properties included:

the significant unobservable inputs and
judgements associated with determining ¢
the fair value. As disclosed in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements, the
investment properties are located in the

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group’s investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the
valuations performed by the Valuer.
Details of the valuation techniques and
key inputs used in the valuations are
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. The valuations have
been arrived at using income approach,
which is dependent on certain key inputs
and assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as term yield and

reversionary yield.

The Group’s investment properties as
at 31 December 2020 amounted to
HK$220,795,000 as disclosed in note 16

to the consolidated financial statements.
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Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer
about the valuation techniques, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used
in the valuations; and

Evaluating the competence, capability, and
objectivity of the Valuer;

Assessing the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs including the term yield
and reversionary yield estimated by the Valuer,
by comparing these estimates against market
data or rental of existing lease and comparing
market information for comparable properties in

similar location and condition on a sample basis.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements —
continued

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements —
continued

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 7 TR i B HL A 2 i WAL i R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
A 2020 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
{ig=3 T#x Tk
Revenue I 42 5 366,927 787,207
Cost of goods sold BE & A (214,548) (492,843)
Gross profit E A 152,379 294,364
Other income HAig A 6 13,950 10,474
Other gains and losses HoAtg %5 M 1R 7 5,481 37,102
Selling and distribution costs B B Ay B AR (6,803) (16,463)
General and administrative expenses — M R AT BB 52 (41,959) (55,573)
Finance costs %% H 8 (1,295) (3,534)
Share of result of an associate A —HEE AR EE (77) (174)
Profit before taxation B i i Jas A 9 121,676 266,196
Taxation i JE 11 (45,186) (83,545)
Profit for the year 4 4 Y 76,490 182,651
Other comprehensive income (expense) for the year — 4F 1Al o 2T 42 (B 7
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: WAGER I EEHENER
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment BHEREMEREMD X
upon transfer to investment properties 1 5 B
— Surplus on revaluation -EN AR 21,560 13,273
— Deferred taxation — IR IR IE (5,390) (3,318)
16,170 9,955
Ttem that may be reclassified subsequently to profic % 7T T i 708 £ i s A JH H -
or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of M 30 S R A Y B
foreign operations £ 26,559 (9,608)
Other comprehensive income for the year AF 7 At 4 T o 42,729 347
Total comprehensive income for the year R Ay 4 T UK 4 AR A 119,219 182,998
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

f 7 AR A e LAt 2 v o i R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
i3 Tl T
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: N A A A A A (1)
Owners of the Company ENYNGIE DN 76,527 171,017
Non-controlling interests JF ¥ I B 45 (37) 11,634
76,490 182,651
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year AN AL AR 2 i 45 (B )
attributable to: M
Owners of the Company LN/NTE/ DN 119,253 171,970
Non-controlling interests ¥ T 45 (34) 11,028
119,219 182,998
Earnings per share 5 i B A 13
— Basic YN 5.67 HK cents¥# fll  12.67 HK cents i 1l
— Diluted 8% 5.67 HK cents¥ fill  12.67 HK cents ¥ 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ERer A B DL K
At 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 H

2020 2019
20204F 20194F
NOTES HK$’000 HKS$°000
B 5 T 0 T 5T
Non-current assets IF i B A
Property, plant and equipment EBN =Y & L] 14 79,864 110,338
Right-of-use assets i A & 15 14,226 26,728
Investment properties e g7/ 16 220,795 119,905
Interest in an associate A — T W A FD R A 17 865 888
Rental deposits HE% S 251 273
Deferred tax assets I 4t Bl JH E E 18 406 555
316,407 258,485
Current assets Ui B E E
Inventories & 19 161,719 186,383
Properties held for sale FRIE B 2 20 206,521 322,849
Trade and other receivables B 5 B H Ath JE Wi R 21 72,377 130,893
Loan receivable from an associate JRE Wie — T 2 A W R K 22 13,718 17,328
Derivative financial instruments ik & m T H 23 1,023 -
Bank balances and cash AT B B & 24 81,201 173,781
536,559 831,234
Current liabilities Wi E) B
Trade and other payables B 5 B At B A k0 25 51,007 127,837
Contract liabilities G R AR 26 77,709 258,884
Lease liabilities HE A& 27 4,055 8,129
Taxation payable JRE 44 B TH 40,445 64,577
Bank loans — amount due within one SRAT B — Y — 4E N E
year 28 - 49,259
173,216 508,686
Net current assets B R 363,343 322,548
Total assets less current liabilities B AR E WO B AR 679,750 581,033
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI

At 31 December 2020

2020412 A 31 H

2020 2019
20204 20194F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
Fff 5% Tt T T
Non-current liabilities I B A R
Lease liabilities HEAK 27 3,701 7,428
Provision for long service payments 1= W IR B 4 18 A 29 898 898
Deferred tax liabilities R S Fi TH A R 18 23,518 13,293
28,117 21,619
Net assets B E T E 651,633 559,414
Share capital and reserve e A B ek i
Share capital B A 30 4,500 4,500
Reserves ik H5 647,102 554,849
Equity attributable to owners of the AN A BEA N ME AL HE fR
Company 651,602 559,349
Non-controlling interests IE MR AE 4 31 65
651,633 559,414

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 215 FBBE2SHZ G A MB R RO EFF
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R20214F3 H29 H HIL M I I HE T 88 > Al T
Directors on 29 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf R REE

by:

Kan Kin Kwong Chung Chi Keung
8 2 8 & IR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
i #wH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

22 /N 3L 224
% 6 HE g 5

LIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020
A 2020 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

LYNGE: 2N 1
Property Share  Statutory Non-
Share Share  Special revaluation  Exchange  options  surplus  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  feserve  feserve feserve profits ~ Sub-total  incerest Total
E T % FER
RA RBEE BAGE EfRGE EXRE  WE ABREE REEA Mt R A
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
Tx  THx  Tkx  TEx  TEx  TEx Tz TEx  Tx  TEx T
(note a) (note b)
(Hf3Ea) (K 3Eb)
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 £500 9380 (4430 LSO (B300) 1260 S4B 364069 473200 85075 5983
Profit for the year ERE - - - - - - ST 17017 LG4 182651
Revaluation of property, HYERENER

plant and equipment upon ~ EfEHE - HiE &

transfer to investment Ed]

properties

- Surplus on revaluation -EfRR - - - 10,966 - - - - 10,966 2,307 13,273

- Deferred taxation -RAEH - - - (2,741) - - - - (2,741) 577 (3318)
Exchange differences arising RHEREREE

on translation of foreign i 4

operations - - - - (7,272) - = = (7272)  (2336)  (9,608)
Total comprehensive income 413 2 i i (1 30)

(expense) for the year A - - -8 - - 17017 171970 11,028 182,998
Recognition of equity-setdled 1 a8 b 4 4 5201

share-based payment T SR 508

(note 31) (W33 - - - - - 148 - - 1403 - 148
Share options cancelled and B B 2F 5 LB 75

transferred to retained EREEAM

profits (note 31) (Wt 3E31) - - - - - (23) - 3 - - -
Contribution fromanon-  FE ¥ B MR IE &

controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - 544 544
Acquisition of additional i 1 A

interests in subsidiaries o & (7 36)

(note 36) - - (33284) - - - - - (33284 (96,582) (129,866
Dividend (note 12) R & (K1) - - - - - - - (540000 (54000 - (54,000
Transfer uy - - - - - - 1539 (153) - - -
Ac3I December 2019 20194121311 500 38 (T70) 006 (057) 12641 W7 4STI0 559340 65 541
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#]ZE 2020 4 12 H 31 HIL4EF

Attributable to owners of the Company

A B\ B
Property Share  Statutory Non-
Share ~ Share  Special revaluation Exchange  options  surplus Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Sub-total interest Total
¥ BRE e 1
Bk REEE HMBH EHEE EXRG B BEEHE REEMN Mt EE B
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Tx f#x  FEx  FEx  FEx  FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx
(note a) (note b)
(Mita) (M3 b)
At 1 January 2020 #2020 1718 4500 93840 (37,720) 10,116  (10,572) 12,641 20774 465770 559,349 65 559,414
Profit for the year g - - - - - - - 76527 76507 (37) 76490
Revaluation of property, BUERENMER
plant and equipmencupon — FAFHE -~ B R
transfer to investment Ed]
properties
- Surplus on revaluation -EfiRR - - - 21,560 - - - - 21,560 - 21,560
- Deferred taxation -EERE - - - (5,390) - - - - (5,390) - (5,390)
Exchange differences arising G ER AL
on translation of foreign Mg %%
operations - - - - 26556 - - - 26556 326559
Total comprehensive income 4 132 T U & () )
(expense) for the year Fik - - - 16170 26556 - - 7657 119,253 (34) 119,219
Share options cancelled and B B FE 3 R B 7S
transferred to retained ERAER
profits (note 31) (Mt 3E31) - - - - - (2,440) - 2,440 - - -
Dividend (note 12) B 5 (k1) - - - - - - - (27,000 (27,000 - (27,000)
Transfer gy - - - - - - 8511 (8,511) - - -
At 31 December 2020 12020512131 4500 93,840 (37,7200 26286 15984 10200 29,285 509,226 651,602 31 651,633
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Special reserve represents the reserves arising from the business
transfer of the jewellery business of the shareholders by then to
the Group of HK$4,436,000 on 26 June 2015 and acquisition
of additional interests in subsidiaries of HK$33,284,000 on 22
October 2019.

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the PRC subsidiaries
are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation reported
in their statutory financial statements prepared under relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations applicable to

enterprises established in the PRC to the statutory surplus reserve.

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

T B Gk 5 45 R 20154E 6 A 26 11 i 35 R i ol 22 Bk
B R F AR M T E R 4,436,000
It K 2019410 H 22 B Wi B K& 2 7 69 H A
HE £5 33,284,000 7T -

MR v N R R (T (B )) £ 2 00 AR B 05
HEH P R S AR RO R
B 2 A 3 B 2 e R R T B B R A
U E B 3R P T B B BEAR A 2 10%
A I 35 E O AR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bleiiak

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Operating activities KEE)
Profit before taxation Wk B AT i A 121,676 266,196
Adjustments for: BELLT IH B E R
Share of result of an associate g3 Ak — [ A T
ES 77 174
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value BEWENTH
of investment properties 5 8) i 48 Ol 2d) 2,252 (905)
Gain on fair value changes upon R A B Y
transfer of properties held for sale EEREYERN
to investment properties UNESIEE XN & (16,144) (36,522)
Depreciation on property, plant and Y2~ MR R
equipment BEEE 2,777 3,055
Depreciation on right-of-use assets filf J7RE & 2 4T 8 8,144 8,285
Impairment loss recognised on trade B o e K EH 2
receivables L 58 Ik (H s 1E 8,473 1,426
Interest income AR A (2,221) (2,297)
Interest expenses F B B X 1,295 3,534
Share-based payment expenses LB A7 ST 3RPE BA 2 - 1,403
Net gain on fair value change of A e TEZ AT
derivative financial instruments {8 5 Bl i 4 T AR (180) =
Operating cash flows before movements 4 W KR
in working capital B4 & 126,149 244,349
Decrease (increase) in inventories & WD (B8 24,154 (20,556)
Increase in properties under development  %§ JE 115 B ) 2 3% Jin
for sale - (250,263)
Decrease in properties held for sale :H" E & ¥y 2 D 98,093 259,895
Decrease in trade and other receivables 2 Gy Ko T Ath 1 i 3K T LA
and deposits B At 4 90 45,374 9,089
(Decrease) increase in trade and other & 5y e HoAth HE A 2008
payables (3870 18 Jm (86,507) 19,257
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities G HAE D) s (158,425) 49,988
Cash generated from operations KEmGE e 48,838 311,759
Tax paid 24 B IE (68,042) (31,220)
Net cash (used in) generated from G B (I ) BT A5
operating activities B R (19,204) 280,539
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HaBleiak
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
NOTE HK$’000 HK$°000
Wt 2k Tl 5 SRUEE
Investing activities & I B
Repayment from an associate P E Rl k= /N
182 17,507 -
Advance to an associate ] — [ Bh 2 ] K (13,004) (17,688)
Purchase of property, plant and WEYE - WE &
equipment A (1,536) (2,383)
Acquisition of interest in an associate Wi i — [ B A R
WE 5 - (1,111)
Payments for rental deposits & i 4 - (295)
Interest received 2k A S 2,221 2,297
Refund of the deposits paid R AT 4 22 =
Proceeds from disposal of financial WEMASH THZ
derivative instruments JT 15 3 H 1,523 -
Purchase of financial derivative WEATE M T HE
instruments (2,366) -
Net cash from (used in) investing & 5 B T A3 (I )
activities Bl A 4,367 (19,180)
Financing activities Rl & G
Repayment of bank loans i 12 SR AT B 3K (51,578) (261,532)
Acquisition of additional interests in 05 B A B R s A
subsidiaries H Al KE £5 36 - (129,866)
Dividends paid 2t B (27,000) (54,000)
Repayments of lease liabilities A ' A (8,145) (7,353)
Interest paid SENR PSS (1,295) (5,101)
New bank loans raised o4 B AT A K - 154,612
Contribution from a non-controlling T 4 e B R T
shareholder - 544
Net cash used in financing activities lE VS B T B A F (88,018) (302,696)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents i & OB Y WD
[ (102,855) (41,337)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning Y B K
of the year REFHY 173,781 218,114
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A FE [ 2 5 )y 5 28 10,275 (2,996)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FRMB & KB &% (H
the year, represented by bank balances Yy o BISRAT &5 85 K
and cash B & 81,201 173,781
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 7 A 5 e W

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

92

GENERAL

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 16 June 2015 and its shares were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 January 2016. The
registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and the principal place of
business of the Company is at 26/F, YHC Tower, 1
Sheung Yuet Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong. The

Grand Cayman

Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Immaculate Diamonds Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company
are designing, manufacturing and exporting of fine
jewellery and property development. Particulars of the

subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 36.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is different
from the functional currency of the Company. The
reason for selecting HK$ as its presentation currency
is because most of the shareholders of the Company

are located in Hong Kong.

Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %% 5 [ 58 B 422 i A BR 2 7

— & Bl
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" 1) i 20154F 6 H16H 76 BH 2 BF & 5T it
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ZIK/\ ] (1 5 M 9¥ 95 5& %% Cricket Square,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for
the annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020 for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

W A A 8 B B i e (T
o B e ) 2 T AR

T A A BE o i AR 2 2 A i B B
SR P U N

A AR A AR A A R AR A RS
K> CEHRERST S SIS gH
ffi 3 72202041 H1H 8¢ 2 % B 1 2 4F
JE 1 18] 9 ) 2R R 2 7 B T R A A
ZHEE RS R 2 A5 FT A TR 5 &/ W
W 5 i A B I 2 B R A

Fs gl EEIE k. ERZER
W g ) 5Bk

ZAEFT A

Fw B BRI R E R
W2 AEFT A

s BB A ME RN B0 ) S Ok e
8 FH GRS

39455 K s i 5

HE I S 79% 2 B FT AR

A AF BE R A o A R R 2
B HE SR 4R At 2 A5 RT A T A s BB
o HE I 2B T A B AR 4 B R AR K
TR AR B 2 W B SR B Rk B B
T % G AR A B R BT B 2 PR
TE SIf 8 EOK R 2 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue

The Group has not yet early applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective:

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments!
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*

HKFRS 17

Amendment to

HKERS 16

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework?

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 9, HKAS Phase 2°
39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)!

Amendments to

HKAS 1

Amendments to

HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of

HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKEFRSs 2018-20202

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June

2020

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) — continued

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue — continued

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all above new and amendments
to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable

future.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties that are measured at fair
values, as explained in accounting policies set
out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods and services.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

W A A 8 B B i e (T
%g%ﬁ%@%hzgﬂﬁ

A i B9 97 5T A v S 55 i o e
S0 B 1 T A — A

AN F) TR R DA R RT A
B A MR BN R AE T AR R AT LA A
GaMBwmRIlEE KPR -

Bk 7 S B e o A R R e W
2 F wHEUOR

3.1 & B I A o L R

A MBREIRE ST E G
il 2 & 28 A 10 A W B B Rk R
R4 R o AL - 556 BB iR
A W 22 P e 2 B AR R R A
A ) BT AR AE B 8T % B O

Br B & W 3 1% 8 F E SR 4
A E BB R AR Y R R SO AR
M B W0 SO 2 B REBOR
P adt o & S OBAS — iR R MR
il 2 5 B AC AR A 2 o (L E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE

96

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.1 Basis of preparation of the

consolidated financial statements —
continued

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Invenrories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.1 Basis of preparation of the 3.1 % 17 B 05 B 3 o R
consolidated financial statements — -
continued
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, oAb - S B RS - A E
fair value measurements are categorised into Gl R SR CEER il UR AN ¢
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which OB AR N A R A
the inputs to the fair value measurements are FHEFENBEREEZESH A
observable and the significance of the inputs to SRR~ ER2A B SR3Ak > R uk
the fair value measurement in its entirety, which B

are described as follows:

0 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices o B O BUHR O H M R
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical = H 0] DLECAS B9 A0 TR &
assets or liabilities that the entity can BB AR AV B T35 Y EAE (R
access at the measurement date; KRR

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than o HE2FRHM A BUPR 2 ML E A K
quoted prices included within Level 1, that SRR AL RS IR R i)
are observable for the asset or liability, T A B B LR 45 19 it
either directly or indirectly; and BRI 5 R

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for o 3 ABBEREENA
the asset or liability. CGER RS TN & 3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

98

3.2 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns

from its involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its

returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the

three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Profit or loss and each item of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s

accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant

subsidiaries upon liquidation.

n Y o
GEA HEME _ 4H

10 2 M % A 2 i Wk 45 0H H B
JE AN T AN B P B 4t
T Ja8 > ) 2 2 T WA A R
Ao wL AN B P R 4R o RD
o 7 ofF 25 B 4 M ME R b B

47 0 9 G 22 B B R
TR DL B B
S B B — B

AL H B N 2 [ B AR 5y A B
WP AR E - Afk - B -
WA~ BR S B R A A
WO -

T WY & 2> w22 JF 5 M HE 4 SR 4R
B H b 22 HE R E 2R B R B
RV T 5 A A RE AR B Y
AR RN R el < g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s relevant components of equity and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries, including re-attribution of relevant
reserves between the Group and the non-
controlling interests according to the Group’s
and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate

interests.

Any difference between the amounts by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted,
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to owners of the Company.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is

not control or joint control over those policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Interest in an associate — continued

The results and assets and liabilities of an
associate are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of an
associate used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an interest in an associate is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the
associate other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Interest in an associate — continued

An interest in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition
of the interest in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in

which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an
objective that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Interest in an associate — continued

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as
a disposal of entire interest in the investee with
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments, the Group measures the
retained interest at fair value at that date and the
fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate at the date the equity
method was discontinued, and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or
loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income by that associate
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity
to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant

associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Interest in an associate — continued

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate

that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred

to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services

that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following

criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by
the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
3.2 Significant accounting policies — 3.2 HEFFBUOR -
continued
Revenue from contracts with customers HLZEF )& &)U f5 — 48
— continued
o the Group’s performance creates or o AREFEWE LKA % IR F
enhances an asset that the customer O A E A REEE
controls as the Group performs; or BE B
. the Group’s performance does not create an o AEHEMELN KA H A
asset with an alternative use to the Group EEAEABERNBRNERE
and the Group has an enforceable right T 74 4 ] A7 9 1) 04T HE i IR
to payment for performance completed to B CE LT 0 IE o
date.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in AR I g5 A B 15 B A R
time when the customer obtains control of the B R B 2 T RE IRE A RR o

distinct good or service.

The revenue of the Group arising from sales A K AR E E AR
of jewellery product is generally recognised at — R EF B E M (RNE R
a point in time when customer acceptance has AT DA ] 5% 45 5 2 R KBRS
been obtained, which is the point of time when FEE ity 48 R 4 ) 3 R 4 IRE ) HE R o

the customer has the ability to direct the use of
these products and obtain substantially all of the

remaining benefits of these products.

The revenue of the Group arising from property AEBRAEEFHERETRAY
development in the ordinary course of business is FAE R 2 Iam AR P U E AR
recognised at a point in time when the customer W 2 2 P ) RE IRE A RR o

obtains control of the respective properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Revenue from contracts with customers
— continued

A contract liability represents the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible
assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off
the cost of assets less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Property, plant and equipment —
continued

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-
occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item (including
the relevant leasehold land) classified as right-of-
use assets at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in
property revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to

retained profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn

rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Investment properties — continued

Investment properties also include leased
properties which are being recognised as right-
of-use assets and subleased by the Group under

operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value
adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
A leased property which is recognised as a
right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group
as intermediate lessor classifies the sublease
as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the

property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Investment properties — continued

If there is a transfer from properties held for
sales to investment properties carried at fair
value, any difference between the fair value of
the properties as at the date of transfer and their
previous carrying amount is recognised in profit

or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress mainly
comprises raw materials and direct labour. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified under current assets and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Properties held for sale — continued

The Group transfers a property from properties
held for sales to investment property when there
is a change in use to hold the property to earn
rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business,
which is evidenced by the inception of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date
of transfer and its previous carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Borrowing costs — continued

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the year,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the

effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in

the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial asset at fair value through profit
and loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial assets
or financial liabilities and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at

amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect

contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 17 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets — continued

All other financial assets are subsequently

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(“FVTPL)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the

purpose of selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly

reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

fo 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
2 E RHEOR -

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the

“other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit losses (‘ECL”) model on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
and other receivables, loan receivable from an
associate, bank balances and deposits). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are
done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

For all other instruments, the Group measures

the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless

there has been a significant increase in credit

risk since initial recognition, in which case the

Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment

of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is

based on significant increases in the likelihood

or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue

cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether

credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;
o an actual or expected significant

deterioration in the operating results

of the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

. an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates

otherwise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

O]
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Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument
has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk
if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have
low credit risk when it has an internal or
external credit rating of “investment grade”

as per globally understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk —

continued

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase
in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full

(without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(ii)

(iii)

122 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %545 5 [0 42 i A B 23 7]

Definition of default — continued

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the

issuer or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default

or past due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(iif) Credit-impaired financial assets —

continued

(©

(d)

()

the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or

other financial reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

W% LHE -
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Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset

when there is information indicating that

the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over
three years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based
on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a
provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
In addition, certain significant balances
of trade receivables and credit impaired

debtors are assessed for ECL individually.

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL —

continued

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial
asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the

financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

fo 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
2 E RHEOR -

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets at FVTPL — continued

Derecognition of financial assets — continued

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the group
entities are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the group entities
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 17 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Financial instruments — continued
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
at the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment

loss, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash- generating unit or

group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of
the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Impairment on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets —
continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity

instruments at the grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Share-based payment arrangements —
continued

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

— continued

Share options granted to directors and employees

— continued

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market
vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share options reserve. When the share options
are cancelled after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.

132 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %545 5 [0 42 i A Bl 23 )

DA 3 S AT I 22 % B -
&

LA 2 %57 B LUR 8 ST sk 2 X
by -

B TEHELREA B - A

TE A 2% 18 BT A JF T 5l g e F 2
UL > R H I Y LARE
i &5 B DL SO sRIE 2 8 - E
B A S 1 35 B A i R 2 M i T
LAt w1 L A R i e 1 S
B33 T wE AR i S RO fof )
T 2% i i R o AR 4R AR BB T
A7 JE T 5 b A B T AL > B
wFTE 0 5t B R Y R 4f TR BoH fE
HABRT o 1B 3T J5UA il w9 %2 28 (10
A7) R HE i i EE o DAGE R B
T KRB ET R A T A B 9 A
At A S BEHE At Al o T S R Y B
J& H A% Rk 8 BOR 2 B AT ok
AT > ST R I HE Gk A e
A b I TR R B i A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the

tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit before taxation as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

each year.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Taxation — continued

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each year and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of each reporting period, to recover or settle

the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
3.2 Significant accounting policies — 3.2 EEREHNBUR - #

continued
Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities,
the Group applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences on
initial recognition of the relevant right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting
from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the

date of remeasurement or modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Taxation — continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for
frechold land, which is always presumed to be

recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to
the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them

and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under

“other income”.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of
the entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the year, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. oW BH LR RE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEa R -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
3.2 Significant accounting policies — 3.2 HEFFHBUOR -
continued

Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HKS$) using exchange rate prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under exchange reserve.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange

for consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

fo 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
2 E RHEOR -

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued
Leases — continued
Definition of a lease — continued

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract

are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessec

Allocation of consideration to components of a

contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of

the lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease

incentives received;

*  any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and
*  an estimate of costs to be incurred by

the Group in dismantling and removing
the underlying assets, restoring the site
on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce

inventories.

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model,
right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease

liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

fo 7 T B e o A AL R [ W
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 R EBUOK - M

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Leases — continued

The Group as a lessee — continued
Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-

use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not

readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 17 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 Significant accounting policies —
continued

Leases — continued
The Group as a lessee — continued
Lease liabilities — continued

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an

index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the

Group under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise

the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group

exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease

payments.
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate

line item on the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3. HoWMBHERMEAEYE LT
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EHEaBooR -
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued
3.2 Significant accounting policies — 3.2 EEREHNBUR - #

continued

Leases — continued

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are
classified as finance or operating leases.
Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value

model.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

fo 7 B B o A AL e e W
2w EOR - 8

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

continued

3.2 BB G EHBUR - #

3.2 Significant accounting policies —

continued

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised
at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee
benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount

already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in

the cost of an asset.

144 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %55 [ 5 B4 A BR 2 7

K B HoAth = 914 8 A A

R B AR MR R B e I i B
BRF 3 T w1 S A AR A B9 R i B
T RE o BT A A ) IR B AR A Al AR
T B 30 BRIE 55 — TH A ok 5
e H ZEOR BRI A B AR A
AN AR - AR R

TE 40 BR © #8 STAT 19 A4 AT & 3 A%
g B SRR (B TE &
B~ AR Lo R T RS AL -

i H At = 1048 B A A e R A B A
He A g [ AR B A WOl U AT R
MR B T 5 S B A R OR 2R
Bam A BRER & o i iREs R
A~ FR B TR T B E AR B R
e T L B A T 52 B % 4R 4 A D
M o5 — JH A B i E B
R VL N N < N )
15 YL BR 5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months,

are described below.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4, K & 5 A B & Ah 5HA B B

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Critical judgements in applying
accounting policies

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising
from investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in determining
the deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are

recovered entirely through sale is rebutted.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Allowances of inventories — finished goods

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value of inventories is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimation
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are based on the current market
conditions, estimated selling prices of the finished
goods, movement, and subsequent sales of the finished
goods. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in these factors. The Group will reassess the
estimation at the end of each year. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of finished goods is
HK$114,250,000 (2019: HK$131,208,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued

Impairment assessment of properties held for
sale

At the end of each reporting period, management
reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties
held for sale, which are situated in the PRC with
reference to current market environment or whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net
realisable value. Appropriate write-down for estimated
irrecoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss
when the net realisable value is below cost. The
estimates of net realisable value are determined based
on the evidence available at the time the estimates
are made, and the amounts of the properties held for
sale are expected to realise or recover. Actual realised
amount may differ from estimates, resulting in a
decrease or an increase in the net realisable value of
the properties held for sale and additional write-down
or reversal of write-down previously recognised may

be required.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
properties held for sale is HK$206,521,000 (2019:
HK$322,849,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING 4, K & 5 A B & Ah 5HA B B

JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued

Fair value of investment properties

The Group has a designated team to determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for
fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties. In estimating the fair value, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent they are
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuer to perform valuation
of the Group’s investment properties. At the end of
each reporting period, the management works closely
with the independent firm of qualified professional
property valuer to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for
fair value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to directors of the
Company. Information about the valuation techniques
and key inputs used in determining the fair value of

the Group’s investment properties is disclosed in note

16.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of
investment properties was HK$220,795,000 (2019:
HK$119,905,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

Key sources of estimation uncertainty —
continued

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to determine ECL
for the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar credit risk characteristic.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable, and available without undue costs or
effort. At the end of each reporting period, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered. In addition, certain significant balances
of trade receivables and credit-impaired debtors are
assessed for ECL individually. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 39 and 21 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was HK$51,253,000, net of
allowance for expected credit losses of HK$10,190,000
(2019: HK$92,542,000, net of allowance for expected
credit losses of HK$1,717,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wik &gy iR E B

INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable
for the sales of fine jewellery products net of discounts

and returns and sales of properties during both years.

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?), for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on the
revenues and profits from different types of business

divisions.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Manufacturing and sales of jewellery products
business represents manufacturing and sales of
jewellery products including rings, earrings,
pendants, bangles, necklaces and bracelets
(“Manufacturing and sales of jewellery

products”);

(i) Property business represents the investment in
and development and sales of properties for the
Group’s integrated and comprehensive industry

park project (“Property business”);

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure and have combined the Group’s
property investment business together with its
property development business as one single Property
business Segment. Prior year segment disclosures
have been represented to conform with current year’s

presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(a) Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

revenue and results by operating and reportable

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

5. Wedk Koy W& R - B

() 4 alf W R K 6 A

DRI E Y-V T S i
P JUTE W ES itk

Segment:
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B 2020412 H31H 1L 4
Manufacturing
and sales
of jewellery Property
products business  Consolidated
3% R
o 2 T EES A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Ti#u T# T# 7t
Segment revenue 3 0T 4
External sales Ah i g 4% 141,826 225,101 366,927
Segment results i 3,227 119,874 123,101
Impairment loss recognised on trade il 58 52 ) JRE i 3 E B8 A
receivables Jig5 18 (8,473)
Gain from fair value changes upon BB EREYEER
transfer of properties held for sale to G BN A TFE
investment properties 5 ) I £ 16,144
Loss from fair value changes of BEMENA T HEE)
investment properties JiEs 18 (2)252)
Unallocated corporate income AL AR A A 351
Unallocated corporate expenses AR i A P X (6,751)
Unallocated finance costs R 73 e B ¥ 2 (367)
Share of result of an associate A — [ 0 0 W) 2E A (77)
Profit before taxation W 4 i ¥4 121,676
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(a) Segment revenue and results —

5. Wik o aBE R - 48

(@) 4 W W ok B A -

continued
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HE2019F12H31H 1F4F &
Manufacturing
and sales
of jewellery Property
products business Consolidated
Bk &
HK$’0@ HK$’009 HK$,O@
T T T T T T
Segment revenue 7 0 4
External sales AR i 321,274 465,933 787,207
Segment results o E K 47,905 196,871 244,776
Impairment loss recognised on trade Tile 52 B2 By MR o 3 JE U (H
receivables & 18 (1,426)
Gain from fair value changes upon EHAEREYERRK
transfer of properties held for sale to BEY RN LT E
investment properties 5 By 43 36,522
Gain from fair value changes of WG ER AT EHEH
investment properties & 905
Unallocated corporate expenses & 43 B A 3 BH 5 (13,170)
Unallocated finance costs o4y T B T (1>237)
Share of result of an associate A A — [ W N R S 4R (174)
Profit before taxation W o i s | 266,196

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 3. Segment results
represent the profit earned or loss incurred by
each segment and hence is arrived at without
allocation of certain income and expenses
(including certain other income, other
gains and losses, general and administrative
expenses, finance costs and share of result of an
associate). This is the measure reported to the
CODM of the Company, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment

performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

segment assets and segment liabilities by

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BZE 2020 42 12 A 31 A IL&EE

5. Wedk Koy W& R - B

(b) 7 &k & B &k filH

DRI E Y-V T S i
A BB oy W N o B )

operating and reportable segment: #r
At 31 December 2020 #2020412H31H
Manufacturing
and sales
of jewellery Property
products business  Consolidated
Wik R
B B Tk o EE 30 e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#
Assets 923
Segment assets o3 & 285’956 561’941 84‘7’897
Interest in an associate il il R /NN ]
4 865
Deferred tax assets i 4E B TH 406
Unallocated corporate assets FoB A EEE 3,798
Consolidated total assets GAYEMAME 852,966
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities s A 27,585 107,341 134,926
Taxation payable JRE 4 B JH 42,185
Deferred tax liabilities I L B TH £ A 23,518
Unallocated corporate liabilities KomdEAE 704
Consolidated total liabilities HAABAE 201,333
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wedk Ko BB B - 4

INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities —

(b) 7 &k & B &k fifH - B

continued
At 31 December 2019 22019412 A31H
Manufacturing
and sales
of jewellery Property
products business Consolidated
Rk K
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
T T THIT T T
Assets % i
Segment assets o T 348,879 735,585 1,084,464
Interest in an associate i — [ O ALY
HE 4 888
Deferred tax assets I SiE B JE & R 353
Unallocated corporate assets KAWL A FEEE 4,014
Consolidated total assets HAEESE 1,089,719
Liabilities AfA
Segment liabilities o3 6 A 61,302 390,295 451,597
Taxation payable JiE 44 BL 1H 64,577
Deferred tax liabilities i 4 B R B R 13,293
Unallocated corporate liabilities KWL FEAK 838
Consolidated total liabilities HAeABAE 530,305

For the purposes of monitoring segment

performances and allocating resources between

segments:

= all assets are allocated to operating =

segments other than deferred tax assets,

interest in an associate and unallocated

corporate assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

(b) Segment assets and liabilities —
continued

= all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than taxation payable,
deferred tax liabilities and unallocated

corporate liabilities.

Manufacturing and sales of jewellery
products (revenue recognised at a point
in time)

For manufacturing and sales of jewellery products
to the wholesale market, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the
goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s specific

location (upon delivery of goods).

Property development (revenue
recognised at a point in time)

For contracts entered into with customers on sales
of properties, the relevant properties specified in the
contracts are not based on customer’s specifications.
Revenue from property developments is therefore
recognised at a point in time when the completed
property is transferred to customers, being at the
point that the customer obtains the control of the
completed property and the Group has present right
to payment and collection of the consideration is

probable.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers, based on location

Wt B2 43 BB & OB - 4

Hb I &R

LSRR -9 Al R R ALK S ek

of delivery/transfer to customers is as follows: LW o A (1
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T 50

Revenue It

— Hong Kong - HE 76,019 207,507
— Dubai - FE 40,066 107,384
— The PRC - 250,842 472,316
366,927 787,207

Revenue from one major customer which accounts for

B A< 48 B 0 45 A9 10% B DL B — 4

10% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows: BEEPFWmMT
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 7t T 0
Customer A EFA 52,100 N/A* AN 78 i

Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total

revenue of the Group during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. W Ko EbE B - 8
INFORMATION - continued
Geographical information — continued Mo % & OB - 28
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other A A5 1 JF U B E IR AE B TH
than deferred tax assets and interest in an associate) S — [ B N E) R RE ZE R AN R HE
by their physical geographical location is as follows: [ LR VAo 1| R Ol (1 I N
2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T
Hong Kong ik 1,094 544
The PRC H 313,973 256,539
Dubai i 69 161
315,136 257,244
6. OTHER INCOME 6. H i A
2020 2019
20204F 20194
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T
Interest income PSS PN 2,221 2,297
Rental income FH 4 0 A 5,043 1,687
Management fee income BRI A 3,650 2,872
Government grants B R # Bl 1,773 -
Scrap sales JE B Wy g 8 1,017
Others H At 1,255 2,601
13,950 10,474

During the current interim period, the Group
recognised government grants of HK$1,773,000 in
respect of Covid-19 related subsidies which are related
to Employment Support Scheme provided by the
HKSAR government.

N S S N 5 N N S [ i
Covid-194H BE 4 B 19 BT 4 B A R
1,773,0007C » #% fif B BL 75 ¥ HF 1% B
PR R EF R AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Al W 4 I s 48

2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Impairment loss recognised on trade il 58 & S IR e 3k TEL Uk (H M 18
receivables (8,473) (1,426)
Gain from fair value changes upon transfer HIBREREDEZEREY
of properties held for sale to investment RN T 8 Bl i
properties 16,144 36,522
(Loss) gain from fair value changes of BEYEN N T EEH
investment properties (5 18) Ik 25 (2,252) 905
Net gain on fair value change of derivative A 4 Rl T H N F (8 5 8
financial instruments W %5 V5 AR 180 -
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain e 52 (J5 1) i 25 (118) 1,101
5,481 37,102
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MuEHM
2020 2019
20204 2019 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T L T T
Interest on lease liabilities HE AN S 671 948
Interest on bank loans SRAT B O B 624 4,153
Less: Amount capitalised in the cost of W BB EE AR 2 EARLL
qualifying assets k| - (1,567)
1,295 3,534

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended
31 December 2019 arose on the general borrowing
pool and were calculated by applying a capitalisation
rate of 6.9% per annum to expenditure on qualifying

assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. B B A i A
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Profit before taxation has been arrived at % Bl i a8 AR F0BR T 51 45 1H
after charging;: %3
Depreciation of property, plant and Yy 2 ~ WS B s AT S
equipment
— cost of goods sold - OB B RAE 211 260
— general and administrative expenses - — & B AT BB X 2,542 2,771
— selling and distributed costs — S5 Ky 85 A 24 24
2,777 3,055
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PR R E T RS 8,144 8,285
Total depreciation B A% 10,921 11,340
Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 4 (M 5E10) 6,852 8,489
Other staff’s salaries and other benefits HoAth B T %7 4 & HAth 48 A 15,343 21,536
Other staff’s equity-settled share-based HoAth 5 T DA A &5 E LR
payment 3244 508 , 1116
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme Hofth B T4 4R K 48 F1 51
contributions it 3K 969 1,219
Total staff costs B T A 4R 23,164 32,360
Auditor’s remuneration % B B 4 1,040 1,265
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses C e 58 J BH S A7 B LA
(included in cost of goods sold) (FFA B & & 5 A) 214,337 492,583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. # F M &
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the AR 4 B B A B AN AR L R EE R
directors and the chief executive of the Company FEATEH N B F M SE &S

during both years are as follows:

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and scheme
Fees other benefits  contributions Total
ek B4 1 A
& oAt 5 A At 3 it 5% it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T T#n Ti#x T# 71
For the year ended 31 December 2020 i 2020412 31H
IR
Executive directors: TS
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (note (i) fi e 5 5 A (HE3E ) - 3,750 18 3,768
Ms. Shek Mei Chun ES 3 Sn - 1,200 18 1,218
M. Chung Chi Keung EERLE - 1,200 18 1,218
Independent non-executive directors: B . 3 #L 47 % 5
M. Fan Chor Ho AR 216 - - 216
Mr. Li Cheuk Wai (Resigned on 1 May % R 5E R (R 20205
2020) SHIARHE) 72 - - 72
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick L 216 - - 216
Mr. Lee Ka Wing (Appointed on 1 May 2% 5 % 2 (72020 4F
2020) SHIREZAT) 144 - - 144
648 6,150 54 6,852
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION -

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

10. 3 F M & - #

continued
Retirement
Equity-settled benefits
Salariesand  share option scheme
Fees  other benefits expense  contributions Total
ek UHEGEH HEL N
4 AR R ICHE B S A At 3k o
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt T T T
For the year ended E20194
31 December 2019 12H31H 1k 4
Executive directors: HirdEF:
Mr. Kan Kin Kwong (note (i)) i e 5 o6 4
(B 5E ) = 4,500 60 18 4,578
Ms. Shek Mei Chun hEZ Lt = 1,500 55 18 1,573
Mr. Chung Chi Keung R - 1,500 55 18 1,573
Independent non-executive Baykpfr&s:
directors:
Mr. Fan Chor Ho R Ip 216 = 39 = 255
Mr. Li Cheuk Wiai FHPLAE 216 = 39 = 255
Mr. Wong Wai Keung Frederick R LA 216 - 39 - 255
648 7,500 287 54 8,489
Notes: B 5
(i) Mr. Kan Kin Kwong is also Chief Executive of the (i) fijfd e o B AT AN R ATEC A% - bk

Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those

for services rendered by him as Chief Executive.

(ii)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

mainly for their services in connection with management of

the affairs of the Company and the Group. The emoluments

of independent non-executive directors shown above were

mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

(i)

HLC ST P DY 6 A HL R T AT AR AR R
B T A5 0 5

b SRR R AT I R 5 5E
Ao E B AR AR TS TR R RS o b
SCFT 7R 8 S5 JF AT S 2R T S
Ve B 7 o> W) 38 28 47 (IR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION - 10. & M & - 4
continued
Five highest paid individuals T br d s BN &
The five highest paid individuals included three B 22020124310 IE 4 & > 77 &
(2019: three) directors of the Company for the e N b A = AL (20194 - = A7) ¥
year ended 31 December 2020. Details of whose oo % B B RE S EOR B oC e HR
emoluments are included above. The emoluments WA (20194F = W A7) Fx i 3 AN = B9 3
of the remaining two (2019: two) highest paid P 4an T

individuals are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# 5t T JC
Employees fié &
— salaries and other benefits — ¥ & B H A AR A 1,288 1,420
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — — 3R K & F] 51 #1 4t 3 36 36
1,324 1,456
Their emoluments were within the following band: 182 5 B4 357 I A T AT 85 & -
2020 2019
20204 20194F
Number of Number of
employees employees
(F1-WN PN
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 41,000,000 JT 2 2
During both years, no emoluments were paid by the AT R A T A A B R A ) A
Group to the directors of the Company or the five GIE & SRVETIE DN
highest paid individuals (including directors and AR B) 34T 3 W AE 25 m A AR 5 B 5k
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining A A SR H A% Y HE Y B R R A o
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None T T AR B A o B R EE S B RO
of the directors have waived any emoluments during AT AT e P
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

11. TAXATION 11. BiJE
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T 5T
The taxation charge comprises: Tl VE 37 M AL A
Hong Kong Profits Tax s F) 15 Bl
— Current year — A RE - 2,681
— Overprovision in prior year — R PR AR AR R B A 797) -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Fp R A 2 T A B
(T4 ZE P15 8i 1)
— Current year — A 24,528 44,648
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) g b B (E R
([ 3t 384 {E B ) 18,035 26,927
41,766 74,256
Deferred tax charge (note 18) I S B IA S (Bt sE18) 3,420 9,289
45,186 83,545

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative
Council passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment)
(No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%.
The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

R20184E3H21H » & s 3 5 & W R
20174F B B (18 5T) (BE79%) 6k f = %
(MG B B2 ) > 5] A R 15 B % il -
A6k 151 | 22 12 20184F3 H 28 H 48 %% & W &%
P MR H FEE R TR o AR BRI
SRS > AEREBREME2H
B T W A Y B3R £58.25% o 1T R A
27 H5 ¥ T i A B R 5516.5% o A AF
A IS B AR ] 2 S R Y R
M B HR16.5% # — Bl R HUBL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

11. TAXATION - continued 11. P JEH — 4§

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of fine
jewellery products through processing factories in
the PRC under contract processing arrangement.
Accordingly, under such 50:50 onshore/offshore
arrangement between the Group and the processing
factories, certain profits of the Group are not taxable
under Hong Kong Profits Tax during both years.
In addition, the processing factories of the Group
is subject to the PRC EIT at a rate of 25% on the
deemed profit generated in the PRC.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. LAT has been levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs.
Prescribed direct costs are defined to include costs of
land, development and construction costs, as well as
certain costs relating to the property development.
According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally
upon sales of the properties, followed by final
ascertainment of the gain at the completion of the

properties development.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

11. TAXATION - continued 11. Bt IH - 4
Taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to the AR N B TH 3 W] B AR A 1R AR S H A A
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement TH] WA 3% A Y 5 B I 6 ) 3B R 40 R
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’°000 HK$000
T# T T 7T
Profit before taxation o T v A 121,676 266,196
Tax at the applicable income tax rate at i 3 A T A5 B 2R 16.5% $LAN 1)
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) B IH (20194 © 16.5%) 20,077 43,922
Tax effect of share of result of an associate M — [H] B 48 20 W) 2 45 19
i B 2 2 13 29
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A~ 0] 11 B4 B 3¢ i Bl 5 5% ¢
purposes 2,521 2,341
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax T ZH 3R Bl IR A Bl 5%
purposes (861) (451)
Utilisation of tax loss previously not B A e i oK e R R B IE i 18
recognised (235) —
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences A< fiff 58 7 1 5 BT R M 2 % 1Y
not recognised o %5 5 2% 1,398 —
Effect of profit under 50:50 arrangement 50 : 504 HE N Y %R R 2 (114) (2,939)
Tax effect of different tax rates of A R N S W 2
subsidiaries operating in the PRC NGRS RS X 8,324 18,365
PRC LAT o B (BB 18,035 26,927
Tax effect of PRC LAT recognition Tt 58 v B Ll 14 B ST
resulting a reduction in income tax BB D2 B% B (2,976) (4,443)
Tax effect of two tiered profits tax rate ) 15 B W AR A B R ) R 2
regime Bl T 5 2 (165) (165)
Overprovision in prior year i FE A B R A B A 797) -
Others H At (34) (41)
Taxation charge for the year 4 0 B TH S 45,186 83,545
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

12. DIVIDEND 12. iz B
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# 5t T T
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNEWRB SR EE:
during the year:
Interim dividend for 2020 of Nil 20204F AR B IR E
(2019: HK$0.01) per share (20194F - 4 JK0.01% 7T) - 13,500
Final dividend for 2019 of HK$0.02 20194F K A i B 8 5 0.02# 7T
(2018: HK$0.01) per share (20184F « 45 i£0.01%E JT) 27,000 13,500
Special dividend of Nil (2019: HK$0.02) Rl B - %
per share (20194F : & % 0.02% 7T) - 27,000
27,000 54,000

The directors proposed to declare a final dividend
of HK$0.02 per share, totalling HK$27,000,000 in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, payable
to the shareholders whose names appear on the

Company’s register of members on 16 June 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. & i &
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per A 2% AN A A B B R T o
share attributable to owners of the Company is based M IR T 5 BE A

on the following data:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# T Tt
Profit for the year attributable to owners of 4% 2% & #E A A JE Al 4F (A7 I6i
the Company and earnings for the purposes X 5t 7 5 5 I Hk 4% Iz 4k v
of calculating basic and diluted earnings per #1 F| Z %1 F|
share 76,527 171,017

Number of shares

ity B H
’000 ’000
T T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &l &1 35 B I 4k A% K¢ 4 ¥ 21 |
for the purpose of calculating both basis Z %0 T o HE S 24
and diluted earnings per share 1,350,000 1,350,000
The computation of diluted earnings per share for A E#K 22020412 H31H & 20194124
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 31H 1k 4F B2 45 BB 4 0 48 ) 3 AS MR s AT
2019 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s i AR 2w B HE > T IR R R S N I
options because the exercise price of those options was AT B A A TR R MR i R B A S 24 T

significantly higher than the average market price of 15 -

the shares for the year.
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

14. Y 3¢ ~ W55 M ik i

Leasehold land Plantand  Furniture and Construction in
and buildings machinery fistures  Motor vehicles progress Total
HELR
Bs RERER  KEREE L ERIHE it
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
Ti#n Tin Tin T#n T#n Fix
Year ended 31 December 2020 KE2020F 127310 L5
At 1 January 2020 #2020 171R
Cost Ak 110,605 5,374 14780 3,704 384 134,847
Accumulated depreciation Btk (1,444) 5,149) (12,400) (3,03) - (22,028)
Exchange realignment 3 (1,974) - (106) (17) (384) (2,481)
Cartying amount W 107,187 25 2,274 652 - 110,338
At 1 January 2020 202041 A1H 107,187 225 2274 652 - 110,338
Additions RE 603 - 60 873 - 1,536
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE (34,180) - - - - (34,180)
Depreciation e (1,335) (89) (845) (508) - 2777)
Exchange realignment Eing 4,840 - N 15 - 4,947
At 31 December 2020 202051211318 77,115 136 1,581 1,032 - 79,864
At 31 December 2020 #2020 121311
Cos S 77,08 5,374 14,840 4577 - 101,819
Accumulated depreciation Bithé (2779) (5,238) (13,249) (3,543) - (24,805)
Exchange realignment A% 2,866 - (14) V) - 2,850
At31 December 2020 001310 7115 136 1,581 1,032 - 79,864
Representing: f%:
Catrying amount e (4 77,115 136 1,581 1,032 - 79,864
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B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
A 2020 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y36 ~ W55 Mk il — 78
EQUIPMENT - continued
Leaschold land Plantand  Furniture and Construction in
and buildings machinery fixtures  Motor vehicles Moulds progess Total
HELIR

g7 RERER RRREE gt} BA ERIE At
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKS000
T T T T T T T

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE019F 120310 LA

At 1 January 2019 R2019E111R

Cost S - 574 13,658 3,704 1,141 132,653 156,530
Accumulated depreciation 23 E = (5,010) (11,268) (2,69) (1,141) = (20,114)
Exchange realignment A = = (%9) (19 - (5,269) (5343)
Carrying amount W - 364 2,331 994 = 127,384 131,073
At January 2019 m09F1A1H = 364 2331 994 - 127,384 131,073
Additions KE L171 - 1,122 - - 382 2675
Transfer :§4 127,382 = S = S (127,382) S
Transfer to investment properies EREREnE (17,949) - 5 5 = = (17,948)
Depeciation ik (1,444) (139) (1130 (340) = = (3,059)
Exchange realignment e (1,974) = 47) ] - (384) (2,407)
At 31 December 2019 09124318 107,187 25 2174 652 = 5 110,338
At 31 December 2019 *2019%12H310

Cost s 110,605 5374 14,780 3,704 = 384 134,847
Accumulated depreciation 2k (1,444) (5,149) (12,400) (3,035) - - (22,028)
Exchange realignment Bk (1,974) - (106) (17 - (384) (2,481)
At 31 December 2019 J2019% 121310 107,187 25 274 652 = 5 110338
Representing: R%:

Carrying amount R 107,187 05 2074 652 s g 110,338
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y13 ~ B Bkt — 4
EQUIPMENT - continued
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y3~ Wi B st 1O I 85 BT B AR
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate sEE S DU H AL E A AR B8 4 AR
their cost or fair value to their residual values over AN TFEERGBEEDT:

their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leaschold land and building Over the lease terms THE - o HEWRA
Plant and machinery 20% per annum T 75 % % £20%
Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum BRAR K E B F20%
Motor vehicles 20% per annum RE F20%
15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 15. ffi Fl HE &

Leasehold Motor Fixtures and
land Buildings vehicles  equipment Total
g+ S HH HHEHEEE At

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$’000
Ti#T Tt Tt T Tt 7

As at 1 January 2020 #20204£141H
Carrying amount i 1 i 11,737 12,848 2,016 127 26,728
As at 31 December 2020 #20204:12H31H
Carrying amount R 1A (5 6,848 7,300 - 78 14,226
For the year ended #® £20204F

31 December 2020 1231 H 1L 4
Depreciation for the year ERTE 221 5,858 2,016 49 8,144
Total cash outflow for leases MERSREEHE 8,816
Additions to right-of-use assets  fiff I HE & VR B N/A AR
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

15. 1 FH HE & & - ]

continued
Leasehold Motor  Fixtures and
land Buildings vehicles equipment Total
&+ 83 KE GHERREREE At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tt T T T
As at 1 January 2019 R20194E1H1H
Carrying amount R 1 15,179 10,422 4,031 176 29,808
As at 31 December 2019 #20194E12431H
Carrying amount T £ 11,737 12,848 2,016 127 26,728
For the year ended B E2019%
31 December 2019 121318 k4 %
Depreciation for the year N 292 5,929 2,015 49 8,285
Total cash outflow for leases HEB &A% 8,301
Additions to right-of-use assets WHEEERE 8,401

For both years, the Group leases various leasehold

land, buildings, motor vehicles and fixtures and

equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are

entered into for fixed term of 2 years to 50 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis

and contain a wide range of different terms and

conditions. In determining the lease term and

assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,

the Group applies the definition of a contract and

determines the period for which the contract is

enforceable.

R AR R A AR A B A B A
THE - #EF - RE KRB K
A o & A AT L 24F £S04 1Y [E
B A PR o FH B M e R R R vE T P O R
B 45 Ml A 0 R B e A o i i o T
B R R AG S T RCES BT 2 B RR RE A
A2 [ E ) A 40 7 8000 18 0 A AV BUATH -

2020 Annual Report 4EJE #4171
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. &M %

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# 5t T T
FAIR VALUE AR
At 1 January r1H1H 119,905 9,563
Transfer from properties held for sale (note i) R B R E B 2 (kD 29,521 77,565
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ¥ 5% 0¥ % ~ W5 K& &Z
(note i) (B 5E i) 55,740 31,221
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note ii) R B RS E (B sk i) 5,145 2,892
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or A 18 % A #E 52 19 28 1 (&
loss 5 E (2,252) 905
Exchange realignment REE 5o, 3 % 12,736 (2,241)
At 31 December W12H31H 220,795 119,905
Notes: B 3

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, properties with
fair value at the date of transfer of HK$29,512,000 (2019:
HK$77,565,000) were transferred from properties held for
sale to investment properties due to change of use as a result
of commencement of relevant leases. The fair value at the
date of transfer was determined by an independent valuer
and the excess over the carrying amount of HK$16,144,000
(2019: HK$36,522,000) was recognised in other gains and

losses at the date of transfer.

(ii)  During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
changed the use of certain of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets and leased them to
independent third parties for rental income. Upon the
transfer to investment properties, these properties were
revalued with a gain on revaluation of approximately
HK$21,560,000 (2019: HK$13,273,000). This amount
net of the corresponding to deferred tax liability of
approximately HK$5,390,000 (2019: HK$3,318,000) has

been credited to property revaluation reserve.

All of the Group’s properties held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and measured using the fair

value model.
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(1)  EE2020F12A318 14> mRAA R
5 BH b i SR R R R A T s R
B KN 1A #529,512,0009 7T (20194F
77,565,000% 70) 2 M EC HFEE L E Y
XEBEREME BBERZAVH
i — 4% J8 7 A (B A 2 > T R R R
16,144,000 JC (20194F : 36,522,000 JT)
2 A L RS K M T RR 5 At i 35
KGR -

(i) W ZE2020F12H31H L FJE > AEEHCE
WO T ¥ WS KR DL Bl A
FE 2 > 6 E AL T B A =
BEBCR G U A o TR B G Y ERK 5
LW EE EA > E AN IR 4R 4 521,560,000
#5 JC (20194F  13,273,000% C) - A B & 5
A 11 Bk AR E IR AIE B TE £ 495,390,000 0
(20194 : 3,318,000 JC) B B 5t AP £ &
fli A -

2 S I8 AR 0 A0 L6 AT LA W A
e SR B H 0 2 AT 3 E
550 51 0 5 B VE ) S - T DS T (R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES —

continued

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2020, the date of transfer from
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
properties held for sale have been arrived at on the
basis of valuations carried out on the respective dates
by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer. APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited has appropriate
qualifications and experience in the valuation of

properties in the relevant locations.

The fair value of investment properties located in the
PRC is determined by using income approach. The
income approach is calculated by capitalising the
rental income derived from the existing tenancies with

due provision for any reversionary income potential.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

16. & WE - M

A 4L B G W) 3 2020412 H31H (B
EEAYE - RFE R AR
FEURFFEREYEZIY Z AT
1B 75 A 45 8 37 A A% S ZE Al (E Rl B K
Y E BT Al SRR R A RR A A AR B B
AT Z A (E G W o 55K G & E & B
F A B 2 17 4 B b B 2 A T
Tl AT 5 T 2 RS L BB o

MRPEZEEYEZ A FEHTIK
PN % B E - WA TSI BLA LAY
Z e ABARA > A WA o T AE 1R
S Wi AR R R A RO

Valuation
Fairvalue  techniques and
Investment properties Fair value hierarchy ~ key inputs Significant unobservable inputs Sensitivity
i e 3 e
BEm* ¥ AFESS EERAUR LON R VLNt BBK
2020 2019
0206 200F
HK$°000  HK$'000
Ti#n  TE#x
Residential properties in 87,415 35,13 Level 3 Income approach Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by  The higher the term yield, the lower
the PRC - term yield matket average selling price and the market average  the fair value
rental from comparable properties and adjustment
to reflect the conditions of the properties, which
is ranged from 1.4% to 3.0% (2019: from 2.0% to
25%)
T ZEENE 7415 323 B WA -EME ERNE AR AR R WG THE R A FERE

BRUSTHHEMEE 2 RERBRBY £
AT 2 0% 4 F1.4%F3.0% (2019% :
A F2.0%F25%)
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES -

16. & W% - M

Significant unobservable inputs

EXATRERAUR

Sensitivity

BEK

continued
Valuation
Fairvalue  techniques and
Investment properties Fair value hierarchy  key inputs
s &
#EM* M¥E APE¥E FEBARK
2020 2019
020 2019
HK$'000  HK$'000
T#n  Tixn
- reversionary yield
BEhE
Industrial buildings in the 133,380 84,692 Level 3 Income approach
PRC - term yield
PR TERT 133380 8460 A3k B - 2 Bl

- reversionary yield

There is no transfer into or out of Level 3 during year
ended 31 December 2020.

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with the
future rental, which is ranged from 1.9% to 3.5%
(2019: from 2.3% to 3%)

BSlE ARG BN E NG THE
(B B 5 F 9 B A 2 W BB AR
HEHBRRI LR A F19%E35%
(20197 + /+ F2.3% % 3%)

Term yield, taking into account of yield generated by
market average selling price and the market average
rental from comparable properties and adjustment

to reflect the conditions of the properties, which is
ranged from 3.4% to 5.7% (2019: 4.0% to 5.0%)
EMbE > B RTEL BN E TG THE
(& Bt 5 T4 40 B A 2 s R B R A %
ARSI 2 - A F34%%5.7% (20195 -
A F4.0%%5.0%)

Reversionary yield, taking into account of yield
generated by market average selling price and the
market average rental from comparable properties
and adjustment to reflect the risk associated with the
future rental, which is ranged from 3.9% to 6.2%
(2019: 4.5% to 5.5%)

Bl ARG BN NG THE
(B B 5 F A9 B A 2 MR BB AR
HEME BRI Z 0 HF39%F6.2%
(20199 : 4 F4.5%%5.5%)

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

Rl R & F R

The higher the term yield, the lower
the fair value

 RFERE

The higher the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value

fRwR R AFEEE

B E2020F12A31H L EE W > 5653
% I 4R A B g o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

17. % — [l W6k 45 2> v BY B 2R

At At

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

#20204F #20194F

12H31H 12A31H

HK$’°000 HK$’000

T# T T T

Cost of investment in an unlisted associate & — [H] JF b i Bk & A w1 1)

BOE A 1,111 1,111
Share of post-acquisition loss JRE 6 e 1 1% T 18 (251) (174)
Exchange adjustment [ifE 5, 37 B¢ 5 (49)
865 888

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2020

A 4 B W N\ 202012 A31H K

and 31 December 2019 are as follows: 20194F12 H31TH W REIE N F -
Place of
incorporation Proportion of Proportion of Principal
Name of associate and operation ownership interest  voting power held activity
wk: I 57 B
Wk 8 2\ 0 REE b B i £7 HE BE 45 L f] Pk bl BREEH
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194F 20204 2019%F
Y PR 55 2k 8 S0 fb 38 PRC 19% 19% 19% 19%  Trading of fine
AR A7 jewellery
YA 8 2k 8 SO b 38 ol BHEKERY
A R 27
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F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. ¥ & Bt JH & & (£ 1K)
(LIABILITIES)
The movements in deferred tax (liabilities) assets AN IR BLUIE (BfE) & E NS E)
during the year are as follows: W
Revaluation Fair value

of property, change upon

plantand  transfer of Accelerated
equipment  properties  Fair value tax
upon transfer  held for sale change of depreciation/

to investment to investment  investment  accounting

properties  properties  properties depreciation Total
BBERE HELED
WmEREN REBER i3 B 9
Wk Wk BWEKRZ HEWEZ i/
R AVEEH AKAVEEDH 0 G508 i)

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T Tk T Tt

At 1 January 2019 201941 H1H (866) = = 285 (581)
(Charge) credit to profic or loss | HiB & 1B 5t A B 5 - (9,131) (226) 68 (9,289)
Charge to other comprehensive 4 7 F Al 2 T Ut £

income for the year Eil’s (3,318) - - - (3,318)
Exchange realignment W 5, 4 % 78 166 4 - 248
At 31 December 2019 2019412 431 H (4,106) (8,965) (222) 353 (12,940)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (1A i 911 FR) s AR f = (4,036) 563 53 (3,420)
Charge to other comprehensive  H 4 I H A 2 T i i

income for the year EitlES (5,390) - - - (5,390)
Exchange realignment [ 52, 3 % (566) (812) 16 s (1,362)
At 31 December 2020 A2020412H31H (10,062) (13,813) 357 406 (23,112)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 18. ¥ %t B JH ¥ R (R ) - M
(LIABILITIES) — continued
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax LR 2 75 B 85 W 3k ) i 2 R A i JH
balance for financial reporting purposes: iR T
2020 2019
20204 2019%4F
HK$’000 HK$°000
T¥# oo Tt
Deferred tax assets 1R A B I A 406 353
Deferred tax liabilities % FiE Bl TEH B E (23,518) (13,293)
(23,112) (12,940)
Deferred taxation has not been recognised in respect A7 M i o BB 2 R BT R 2 T
of certain undistributed retained profits earned by the 4 Uk PR B s F11225,325,000 % IG (2019
subsidiary in the PRC amounting of HK$225,325,000 4F 1 135,869,000 %% 7T ) ffE 58 4% 4 B IH -
(2019: HK$135,869,000) as the directors are of the WA S RE A B Y R
opinion that the Group is able to control the timing 75 HH A5 I TR LR R 2 R W]
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it R T 7 A T

is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

19. INVENTORIES 19. # &
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T
Raw materials JE B R 42,991 48,297
Work in progress TE H 5 4,478 6,878
Finished goods RRY 114,250 131,208
161,719 186,383
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. FFEH B %

2020 2019
20204F 20194F

HK$’000 HK$°000

T L T ¥ 7T

Properties held for sale FrAF & W) 2 206,521 322,849

The properties for sale were located in the PRC.
Properties for sale which are expected to be recovered
in more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are classified under current assets
as it is expected to be realised in the Group’s normal

operating cycle.

4 00 S o o R4 0K
b A I 7 3 4
B LT A S
4 4 9000 A S L

HK$’000
Analysis of leasehold lands: GiEN= g P /T RS TH
As at 31 December 2019 #20194£12A31H
Carrying amount % T (E 38,131
As at 31 December 2020 #20204:12H31H
Carrying amount B T (H 36,166

The carrying amount of leasehold lands is measured
under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The residual
values are determined as the estimated disposal value
of the leasehold land component. No depreciation
charge is made on the leasehold lands taking into

account the estimated residual values.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
properties held for sale with carrying amount of
HK$117,038,000 (2019: HK$259,895,000) were sold
to third parties.
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LB T R T (E AR B A o B RS
e JI) 551658 LA SR 384T T 2 A1 T 85
(ERCRCEEN TR RN
Jy LB - M o0 B A T B R (E o &
FF LAl R R (E > R BB + bt
RTEEM -

W E20204F12H31H IR > IRIE(E A
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21. TRADE AND OTHER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

21. ® 5 B 3L fth JE Wi 3K IH

RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$000
T # oo T T
Trade receivables & 5 E R 3K H 61,443 94,259
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses o TE WA B 1 (10,190) (1,717)
51,253 92,542
Other receivables, prepayments and deposics At B i 3K TE ~ FAT 3K IE &
% & 21,124 38,351
72,377 130,893

The following is an analysis of trade receivable net of

allowance for expected credit losses by age, presented

based on the invoice date, which approximates the

respective revenue recognition date.

A 7 B 5 TE SRR E AT R T A B
18 1 e 1 AR 0% ) 0 19 o0 A AR B B
£ A W A RE H A A SR H O 2
3 o

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’°000 HK$’000

T# T T

0-30 days 0% 30H 21,364 38,575
31-60 days 31260 H 13,143 16,502
61-180 days 61 180H 11,971 33,321
181-365 days 181 2365H 2,694 3,864
Over 1 year — 4Dk 2,081 280
51,253 92,542

The Group allows a credit period of up to 120 days to

its customers. A longer credit period may be granted

to large or long established customers with good

payment history.

AEHmMEFMHENGEENRZ A
120H > K A9 5 B b 18 R B AT 3CRE Bk
RIFMEF I EREN G -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

21. TRADE AND OTHER 21. ¥ 5 B 3 4t E Wk JH -

RECEIVABLES - continued

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an
internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits and credit approvals
for customers. Limits attributed to customers are

reviewed periodically.

The Group’s management takes into consideration
of customers’ credit history, settlement patterns,
subsequent settlements, customers’ financial position
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions and aging analysis of
trade receivables in determining the recoverability
of the overdue trade receivables. The directors of the
Company considered that the concentration of credit
risk is limited due to customer base being large and

unrelated.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s
trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$14,902,000 (2019:
HK$34,511,000) which are past due as at the
reporting date. Included in the past due balances
of HK$3,134,000 (2019: HK$3,318,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on good repayment records for those
customers and continuous business with the Group.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about

specific debtors is updated.

Details of the impairment assessment of trade and

other receivables are set out in note 39.
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T ZAT MR F A A 5 A N
RSN RS LR EBAERF G
BHER #FAGICHREEEAR
i E R AR R KR R - I
HE & % 5 i IRA -

A 4R B RE R E E 8 R 5 B UL
@SN TR S R ey -9 DR
W Bk AT AR A A
BF 2 B AR DL - S B Ry K TH 0 R A
RE R UL 2 FF Al DA K B ) BB R I
MREE M ANFIERR S HRE
J5ORERE R K BN AR B - AR B L B R
B AR o

R20204F12 H31H > 48R T (H £514,902,000
7 JC (20194F : 34,511,000% JC) 2 I 3K B
FEA A E 2 G 5 REWCGKIE &5 % > %%
FE R B EAC A A o FEA B A B
Z.3,134,000%5 7T (2019 4F 3,318,000 7T
Moo > HRZEREF &
AL B R A7l B A A B Ry A RS A R
MARIEEL - AR B HAERE
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P20

23.

24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM AN
ASSOCIATE

The amount represented a loan receivable from an
associate of HK$13,718,000 (31 December 2019:
Renminbi (“RMB”) 15,550,000 (equivalent to
HK$17,328,000)) which is unsecured, interest-free

and repayable within one year.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

During the current year, the Group entered into
certain commodities contracts which are settled net in
cash with aggregated carrying amounts measured at
fair value of HK$1,023,000 at 31 December 2020.

2

23.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

W Wi — TR] W6k = 2 ) B sk

W 3K TE f8 FE IR — B o A A B R
13,718,000% JT (20194F12 A31H : A B
(AN R %D 15,550,00000) (B & 7
17,328,000% JC) > J& KM~ K FFE
HZAN®—FERNEE -

AT H

AR > AREBFT S E TREMEH
FEAHNUBSTHEER  RF
THE+H=Z+T—HEAFHFTEN
i T 4B (H 451,023,000 JC o

2020 2019

20204 20194F

HK$°000 HK$°000

T # 5t Tt

Financial assets at FVTPL WA EFIABRZ &g E 1,023 —
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24, BATH B LB &

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in currency other than

functional currency of the relevant group entities:

LATR DA B 46 1 A O RE R W DL Ah Y
B R EAY SRR SRAT A B M B &

2020 2019

20204 20194F

HK$’000 HKS$°000

Tt T 5T

HKS$ T 2,562 6,435
United Arab Emiratis Dirham (“Dirham”) Fo] Wi B s 7 0 ([ 28 7 48 1) 354 5,781
2,916 12,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH -

continued

Bank balances and short-term bank deposits, carry
interest at prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01%
to 3.50% per annum (2019: 0.01% to 3.50% per

24. @E‘Tmn ﬁ?&ﬁ% - :%E

20204E12 A31H 19 48 17 45 8% & &
SR AT A7 3K )T 4% BLAT T B AFE F %0.01%
%3.50% (20194F : 4FF] %0.01% £ 3.50%)

annum) as at 31 December 2020. B .
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. ¥ 5 B 3 At JE 4F 5% JH
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Trade payables 5 5 A 5OE 31,705 113,275
Accruals and other payables JRE BT AR TE K Ho At E A5 3k 0E 19,302 14,562
51,007 127,837
Accruals and other payables mainly consist of payable JE &t 3 E & LAt 8 A 3KTH I 2 AL 4R
of staff salaries and benefits. AT B & MAE A o
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables NEAEREEEHBESNE 5 A
presented based on invoice date at the end of each O B B W o A
year:
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 7t T 0
0-60 days 0260H 21,815 103,843
61-90 days 61 £ 90H - 2,904
Over 90 days 90H LA |k 9,890 6,528
31,705 113,275
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

26. 5 M AME

2020 2019

20204F 20194F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Property business SE X9 75,410 256,663
Jewellery business TRE ¥R 2,299 2,221
77,709 258,884

As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities amounted to

HK$454,000.

The Group receives deposits from customers when
they sign the sale and purchase agreement for
property or on placing purchase orders for jewellery.
The deposits give rise to contract liabilities being
recognised throughout the period until the customer
obtains control of the completed property or the

jewellery.

Included in the contract liabilities at 31 December
2019, a balance of HK$223,000,000 was recognised
as revenue in current year. Contract liabilities at 31
December 2020 are expected to be settled within
a year when control of the completed property is

transferred to the customer.

201841 H1H » & % A & %8 £ 454,000
T e

A G SR AT W) 3 H H W R BT
TRE R AT R R % & - &
EAERBMWHER 2EMNAH H
ERFRAGCR TY RSB E 2 5
AL -

R20194F12A31IH W & & B fE > &
%223,000,00045 7€ © i A 4F B 7 58 5
W 3 o B 20204F12H31H B9 & 4
AR % LY S0 P R RS T
KE#&—F NG -
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. MEAE
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T # o T# T
Lease liabilities payable: JRE A FH B A
Within one year — R 4,055 8,129
Within a period of more than one year but  — 4F 48 {H W 4F 1A 11 ]
not more than two years 1,765 3,954
Within a period of more than two years but 1§ 4F % {H F.4F A #7 [
not more than five years 1,936 3,474
7,756 15,557
Less: Amount due for settlement with 5 1 (SO = = el
12 months shown under current AN B4 5 2 30H
liabilities (4,055) (8,129)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months  FI| 7E IF i #) & f& 2 i+ 1A
shown under non-current liabilities A% B 45 5 2 3 3,701 7,428
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28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BANK LOANS

The variable rate bank loans carried interest rate
ranging from 6% to 7.6% per annum as at 31
December 2019. The loans were secured by property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and

investment properties (see note 35).

PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

The provision for long service payments is determined
with reference to the employees’ remuneration and

their years of services.

28.

29.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

i B

A20194F12H31H » I E RT3 )
Fie 5 R B A F 6% £7.6% 5T o B
Y~ R M Rl (R REE E AR
W) 2K (LB RE35) o

= 10k % <& 5

RWRE #H25EAEME LK
S 1 MR 15 4F 1 E

2020 2019

20204F 20194F

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt T ot

At 1 January W1ALH 898 986
Reversal of provision for the year AR B ] A - (88)
At 31 December W12H31H 898 898
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. it A
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T# L T T
Authorised: i€ -
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of one 3,000,000,000 1 % B 1 {E
third Hong Kong cent each (2019: =2 Al 2 Ry
3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of one (20194F : 3,000,000,000 /1%
third Hong Kong cent each) REE = 22—z
W2 ) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CEIT AR
1,350,000,000 ordinary shares of one 1,350,000,000 % & % 18 (H
third Hong Kong cent each (2019: =2 Al 2 Ry
1,350,000,000 ordinary shares of one (20194F : 1,350,000,000 %
third Hong Kong cent each) REE = 22—z
W2 ) 4,500 4,500
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30. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

The movements in the Company’s share capital for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020 were as

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

30. e A —

HE 20194 & 20204F12 H31H IF 4% »
AN A 22 WA 5 B 5 AR

follows:
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
ordinary shares shares
RNl WS RN R AT
HK$’000
Tt
Authorised: EE:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R20194E1H1H ~ 20194
and 31 December 2020 12H31H %20204F12 H31H 3,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: DT RME:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,  jiA20194F1 A1H ~ 20194F
and 31 December 2020 12H31H %20204F12 H31H 1,350,000,000 4,500

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then

existing in issue in all respects.

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pursuant to written resolutions passed on 14
December 2015, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The Share
Option Scheme was valid for a period of 10 years

commencing on 14 December 2015.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the

Group.

A E 8 AT B W BT A 75 T B R B
A BT = A [ 55 HE AR o

31. VA B A 3 A sk H

48 A A\ R 20154F 12 H 14 H %8 48 /Y
TR EE > AN A D R RE
(5 IR 51 30 0) - % I HE 5T B H
2015%F12 H 14 H R 5HA 8104F -

Jils B HE B ) 2 AR A A 4R B AT LA 1)
TRt 2 2 BB R T R o DA SR B
EHEBEAEETEZER -
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

31.

188  Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %545 5 [0 42 i A Bl 23 7]

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to subscribe for shares in the Company to eligible
participants (“Eligible Participants”) who contribute
to the long-term growth and profitability of the
Company. Eligible Participants include (i) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time including
any executive director but excluding any non-
executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
any member of the Group holds an equity interest; (ii)
any non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier
of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; (vi) any sharcholder of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any
other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the

development and growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under this scheme and any other
share option schemes adopted by the Group shall not
exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in

issue from time to time.

31. DA A S A K H - 2

R P B AR ST B AR W B RE
SE ] 2 AN A 2 R i R R R B R e
FHERMZEEBZHE((FEKS
B2 ) $2 T 0T R B AR N R R 0y 2 I
e REKSHELR : OAAA -
AT o7 B B 28 ) B rh A 42 BT AT i B
AR R 2 MERE(RE
B AT TR B (45 2 0k o 3R
I BUATHE S M A I AT
HH) 5 (@) AN F - HAT ] 8 A F
ST TR EEE A MEAITEE (G
5 8 57 I AT ) 5 (i) A< 4 AT AT
BMEAR SR ETEBZEMEY
ol IR B AL E 7 5 (iv) A 4 BT A A B A
AT R EERZEMBEE: 05
A A [ AT ] % B 2N B BT ] 4% H
P AL T - BH B Bl A 4 1 SR 2 AT
fa] R N BB B 5 (vi) AS B BT T B A
] B AT A 18 8 B AT AT R > B R
A A AT AT R B 2\ ST AT %
BT B AT 2 AT A 5 S 2 AT N £
(vii) 1E o] 1] A% 48 B AT ] i B 2 7 5k AT
o $ & B Y AT o] 3£ B I o 26 9
BAEH A L (A e HAh) 5
B Ri)E @G E - EBR N
Aty i 3 22 BRI S A 4R 2 8 R RN B
1% 1 B R T BE 1 B R 2 AT A
ity 25 81 25 4 A Bk 0 A o

AR B 0 R # R A 4R T T Bk A 2 AT
fu] Ay Ve i ME wH B © 4% B E SR AT (8
2 BT A T R R A AT T T e R AT 2 I
EREEE AEERARXNFARD
BEATR AR Z230% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

The total number of shares which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under this scheme and any other share option of
the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of passing of the relevant

resolution adopting this scheme.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any twelve-month
period, are subject to sharecholders’ approval in

advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors of
the Company, save that such period shall not be
more than ten years from the date of the offer of
the share options, subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme.
Unless otherwise determined by the directors at
their absolute discretion, there is no requirement of
a minimum period for which an option must be held
before an option can be exercised. In addition, there is
no performance target which must be achieved before

any of the options can be exercised.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

31. VA A S A K - #

PR 4 ot 5t ) K A A AT AT I A i
P T K T % 2 BT A R A AT
i1 AT QA% R AT 2 RO A LR
5 60 0 R B AN e T B 2 A B R
ZEHCBEITRMEEZ10% °

BTPARNFESR  TBATREER
B> B S AT 0] B N 2 B R RE
S8 7E 25 i A5 8 5 JE AT B S L o
11 R {2 o [ i 0 SN " i N/
TR R Bk o AT E S B
AT AT Bk B8N b 2 AT o] 8 P HE > AE AT AT
IR i 255 68 3 A A Ay 2.0.1% > 3R H
MAE (AR H 2 AN\ E 5D
8 ##5,000,000 % 76 > ZH = F R R K
o b R o

152 i M M B 2 B A AT B A H O 21 H
A R R N LA T T Z 4 38 AR
fE AR o P % i W T HE 22 4T i 0 e A
N FEE S PE o MBS BHE H
A EE o SRR AR 3l ZH 2
w1 T A 2 B A L R O S T R A
B I Fh A HE T B
Sl d B dx b JH FR R RO A E
IR BR 46 AT A7 6 > 0 Ab > T M B E JH
O R R B A B 4G AT AT -
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS - 31. DAy 34T s - A

continued

The exercise price of the share options is determinable WERRE AT EB A AR E R E
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less MR RER A AT 2 s 8 () 7E I R
than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing ME B 4 B B AR 2 | I A0 A Wk 52 BT 2 Uk
price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer T 5 (1) 76 T A RE 40 B 3 A7 O
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange ENE NP NN SR R s ol
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five W K Gi) = A HAA LR RG22
business days immediately preceding the date of the THIH °

offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s

shares on the date of the offer.

A summary of movements of the outstanding share O TARA G ERS B E K5I
options granted to and held by the Company’s Eligible R A 2 i AR AT (0 2 5 A
Participants:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B, £2020412H31H L4

Number of share options

TR HE SR
Outstanding at Cancelled Outstanding at
1 January during the 31 December Adjusted
Date of grant 2020 year 2020  exercise price
1#2020% 1#2020%
1A1H 121310 L
fHAM WA FACES W AT B frfif
’000 ’000 ’000 HKS$
T T Th #
Directors E¥ 315.2017 6,570 (900) 5,670 1.07
Other eligible persons K s EHAL 31.5.2017 26,064 (5,409) 20,655 1.07
Total At 32,634 (6,309) 26,325
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

31. VA A S A K - #

continued
Number of share options
Ji e

Outstanding at  Cancelled during ~ Outstanding at
1 January the 31 December Adjusted exercise
Date of grant 2019 year 2019 price

120194 20194

1A1H 12A31H
ik MARHE  FREHH WA BWEHE
000 000 000 HKS$
T T T i
Directors EF 315.2017 6,570 - 6,570 1.07
Other eligible persons HiAEmAL 31.5.2017 26,124 (60) 26,064 1.07

Total st 32,694 (60) 32,634

The share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are exercisable commencing from 31 May
2018 to 30 May 2023 (both dates inclusive) for the
first tranche (“Tranche 17) and from 31 May 2019
to 30 May 2024 (both dates inclusive) for the second
tranche (“Tranche 27). The closing price of the
Company’s shares immediately before 31 May 2017,
the date on which the share options were granted was
HK$1.07 after the effect of the share subdivision on
13 September 2017. For Tranche 1, the fair values of
the share options determined at the dates of grant
using the binomial model for share options granted to
directors of the Company and other eligible persons
were HK$0.37 and HK$0.36, respectively after the
effect of share subdivision. For Tranche 2, the fair
values of the share options determined at the dates
of grant using the binomial model for share options
granted to directors of the Company and other eligible
persons were HK$0.42 and HK$0.41, respectively

after the effect of share subdivision.

R 452 i R AR 1 ) T 42 1 2 R
55— Ik B B RE ([ 55 —Hit ) T fh20184F5
H31H £20234F5H30H (RfEEHEMH)
A7 > T 55 b RE RCRE (28 — 4t )) mT
201945 H31H £20244F5H30H (B2 4%
HEREMHE) AT o AN A RGN B
20174FS H31H (BRI M i #E #2 8 B 39) /i
Z W B £51.07 4 T (5T & ik 20174F9H
13 B 7 4 2 %2 2 4%) - 305 — it
Ms > W _HARBE SR TAL
A A A B RSN 2 R R
B B 2 0 I RE 2 o7 {8 43 Bl £50.37
W 0 20.36%s T (FF & B HF 4l 2
BAR) o B M E > W HK
BRI ER TANFEF R HEMEGE
F& N 22 W RE A 4% B 2 B R RE
N B 4 B A5 0.429 I8 K 0.41% T (B
B B IR A0 2 B AR ) o
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

continued

The following assumptions were used to calculate the

fair values of the share options:

31. DA A S A sk -

#

DATF % wt 5 3 B R 2 F (8 B 6 2 R

2L .
AX -

Tranche 1 Tranche 2
it 5Bk

Grant date 31 May 2017 31 May 2017
£ A 20174ESHA31H 2017485 A31H
Grant date share price (adjusted) HK$1.07 HK¢$1.07
B2 H 0 2 R fE (8 5 4R ) 1.07% 7T 1.07 % 7T
Exercise Price HK$1.07 HK$1.07
17 15 1.07# 0 1.07# 7T
Expected Life 6 years 7 years
HEH 4 64 74
Expected Volatility 52% 53%
T At
Dividend Yield 1.87% 1.87%
i B =%
Risk-free interest Rate 1.00% 1.06%
o ) b )
Early exercise multiple (Directors) 180% 180%
& AT (A% B (3 )
Early exercise multiple (Other eligible persons) 120% 120%

$RARAT O B (b & E AR A T

The valuations are carried out by independent
qualified professional valuers, which are not
connected with the Group. The binomial model has
been used to estimate the fair value of the options.
The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the
independent qualified professional valuers’ best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may

result in changes in the fair value of the options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -

32

continued

The Group recognised the expense of HK$1,403,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019 in relation
to share options granted by the Company. No such
expenses was recognised in the current year. During
the year, share options cancelled of HK$2,440,000
(2019: HK$23,000) has been transferred to retained
profits of the Group.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required
to contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a
maximum of HK$1,500 and they can choose to make
additional contributions. The employer’s monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s
monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,500
(the “mandatory contributions”). The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory
contributions upon their retirement at the age of 65,

death or total incapacity.

The employees of the Group’s factory and offices in
the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The Group are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan

is to make the specified contributions.

31.

32.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

VA BB Ay S 45k sk JH -

B E2019F12H31H IEFE > A LB
AR P 2 B TR e R B 21,403,000
WO o ARG RE > I MEME R LB X -
N O B I R RE2,440,000% T
(20194F : 23,0009 7o) C. 1 £ & A< 4E [#]
Z AR A e

A8 P e A st 3

B it K wt &

A S B AR 98 U ol A B < T #
6% 191 40 7 S At 0 ) PE S B R AK
& ] E (58 B8 & 5t #00) o AR 9 v AR
aut#l o § B ZEAE B A SR HE A #5%
5 i 21,5004 o0 1Y ft 3K 1% 5 TR AT
BB EMEK - BEEWNE XK
1 B H 3 15% 5T B 5K i 21,5004
g6 (5 P gt 3 ) - 1§ B AT it 655k iR
PR~ B R 58 A 5 O A e O IR 15
100% A9 18 3 58 il 1 it 3K -

S LT RNy AR e
Fh v B R 2 AR ) (B 5 BILAR IR A A
A H] o A SR JH % B & A B R E
3 L 1) AR AR AR A #8AE  AEER RAS
R4 & o AS S B A B AR IR AR A
a3 A ME— AT 2 AR AR E itk e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

33. RELATED PARTY 33. Bk 5 A2 5

TRANSACTIONS

The Group had the following transactions with

A G2 [ 4 TR B B g O HEAT AR AR 5

related parties during the years:

194 Perfece Group International Holdings Limited %55 [ 5 B4 A BR 2 7

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’°000 HK$°000

T# L T JT

Sales of jewellery products to an associate 1] — [] W 7 2 W) 8 65 ok B 7 566 -
Rental payments for lease liabilities to entities 3 fl B 8 i X AF T4 A 7] —
under controlled by a director of the ZERERMEBZMSE

Company are as follows: mr e

Land and building + Hb K pE 4,200 4,431

Motor vehicles VR H 2,172 2,172

6,938 6,603

Key management personnel include directors of the

Company and other senior management of the Group.

The remuneration paid or payable during the years

are as follows:

FTHREHANBOHEALFRNES LA
S F Y HoAth = AR HL TR o R AE RN EAY

Bl A 7 A

2020 2019

20204F 20194

HK$’000 HK$°000

Tt Tt

Short-term benefits 5 1A 48 A 7,556 8,973
Post-employment benefits e T 1% A4 A 72 72
7,628 9,045

The remuneration of key management personnel is

determined by management of the Company having

regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

BN B b AN R L E 2
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B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

34. COMMITMENTS 34. 7RI
As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, 2020412 H31H 201912 H31H » A&
the Group did not have significant commitment A5 5] M 48 5T 2915 R R B % i 26 8¢
contracted for but not provided in the financial 2 BRI -
statements.
35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. & E K 4
At the end of the reporting period, the following PSR > AR LR TIE E DK
assets of the Group were pledged to banks to secure TROGEAALEEERGEHRIEZ
credit facilities granted to the Group: R
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T oo
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB MRk i - 106,149
Right-of-use assets i = - 11,737
Investment properties & ) ¥ - 119,905
- 237,791
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F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. A 2 W] Bt & 2 vl WS
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, all of which are R20204E12 H31H K 20194E12 H31H » A&
limited liability companies, at 31 December 2020 and 75 A M S\ (38 B A BR A D B E
31 December 2019 are as follows: LU
Place of Issued and fully paid share capital/  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
incorporation/ registered and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company
tegistration/ CHORMRNA/RMRARRA  KARBHCEERA/ SRR LA
Name of subsidiary operations 2020 2019 Directly Indirectly Principal activities
it/
WEAT AR i/ B 20206 2019% i% k3 FERH

200 2009 2020 2009
205 019F  2020%  2019F

% % % %
Perfect Group International Holdings (HK) Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Designing, manufacturing
Limited (note b) HK$10,000,001 HK$10,000,001 and exporting of fine
jewellery
RESBARERFEARAA KLY Fil HEk 31 - - 100 00 et RERANEE
10,000,001 10,000,001 ¢ E3 |
Perfect Group China Holding (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - = 100 100 Tnvestment holding
HK$10,000 HKS10,000
Perfect Group China Holding (HK) Limited B ik Lk - - 100 00 fEER
10,000 70 10,000 ¢
Perfect Group China Investment (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
HKS$10,000 HK$10,000
Perfect Group China Investment (HK) Limited B ik Tk - = 100 00 BEER
10,000 70 10,0007 ¢
DMCC (HK) Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Investment holding
HK$100,000
DMCC (HK) Investment Limited it Hih - - S - BEER
100,000 7
ERREGERERAEARAA oea)  PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property development
1$530,000,000 US§$30,000,000
REREAEEZRARARLA (Wit 9H i3 1 R - - 100 00 HEER
30000000%%  30,000000%
RESKE (PR HR AR PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery
US$10,000,000 US$10,000,000
REFE(HEARAT HH i3 1 £k - - 100 00 FEREHKE
10,000,007 10,000,000
[UmIRERREDEEBERAT hoea)  PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Property management
RMB500,000 RMB500,000
BUTEEERENEERARAD: (Kt @ i3 1 ik - - 10 0 HEER

AEHS00,000C AR ES000007
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B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. KAFM B AR KR - 8
OF THE COMPANY - continued

Place of Issued and fully paid share capital/  Proportion of nominal value of issued capital/
incorporation/ registered and paid-up capital registered capital held by the Company
registration/ CRORERRA/EMRARRA  ARFRHFOEGRA /R A A
Name of subsidiary operations 2020 019 Directly Indirectly Principal activities
iR/
WEAR LR i/ BE % 20204 0195 i# F3 FERH

200 2019 2020 2009
200 09F 20208 2019F
% % % %

RRESRHEARLA: IRC Ordinary shares ~ Ordinary shares - - 51 51 Manufacturing of the
RMB1,000,000 RMBI,000,000 jewellery
REESRHEARLT il i3 14 ik - - 51 51 BERE
NRHL,000,000% A RH1L000,0007
TP 4R R IR e (nore ) PRC Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Tnvestment holding
RMB,000,000 RMBI,000,000
TR ANERAERAT (Kt H Hik gL - -0 10 HREER
ARHL,000,0007 A RH1,0000007
Petfect Group International Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100 100 - - Investment holding
US$10,000 US$10,000
R EHRRERARLA EERARE Hk Hak 10 100 - - REER
10,000% 7 10,0003 70
Petfect Group China Holding Limited BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
15510,000 US510,000
Perfect Group China Holding Limited KERLES Hik Lk - - 100 100 REHY
10,0007 10,0005 ¢
Perfect Group China [nvestment Limited BVI Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Investment holding
US§10,000 US$10,000
Perfect Group China [nvestment Limited AERAES Eiik Tk - - 100 10 RERR
10,0005 ¢ 10000 72
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery DMCC (note b) Dubai Ordinary shares Ordinary shares - - 100 100 Retailing of fine jewellery,
AED50,000 AED30,000 logistics and marketing
activities
Hong Kong Perfect Jewellery DMCC (£ b) ukss 3 1 ik S - 100 100 FEEEKE MR
SO000HH 50000 H RS
DMCC (HK) Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares - - - 100 - Investment holding
(‘DMCC (HK)'") (note b) HK$100,000
DMCC (HK) Investment Limited Bl i it - - - 100 - RBER
([DMCC (HK) ) (Bt ikb) 100,000 7t
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F 17 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

36. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY - continued

*

The entity is established in the PRC in the form of sino-

foreign owned enterprise.

" The entity is established in the PRC in the form of wholly

foreign-owned enterprise.

ki These entities are established in the PRC in the form of

domestic limited liability company.

Note a: On 22 October 2019, the Group acquired the entire
equity interests in VL "] 7T 2 4 Hb 7€ 5 ) A R A A
together with the shareholder’s loan at a consideration
of RMBI117,450,000 (equivalent to HK$129,866,000)
and it becomes an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. YL [T % 4f Hh 7E 5K &1 A R A 7 is an
investment holding company which holds 30% equity
interest in JE AR BE PR B A BB A R A A and
4 1Ly I N L R BE ) 2E A B A BR A W], which were
previously indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The difference between the consideration paid
and the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

Note b: On 3 January 2020, DMCC (HK) was incorporated
and set up in Hong Kong and its sole sharcholder is
a director of the Company holding 100% of equity
share of DMCC (HK) on behalf of the Group under
a contractual arrangement in which a declaration of
trust is signed by the director on 9 March 2020. As a
result of the contractual arrangement, the Group has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with
DMCC (HK) and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over DMCC (HK) and is considered
to control DMCC (HK). The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that, having considered all facts and
circumstances, the Group has control over them and
owns 100% equity interest of DMCC (HK). During
the year, Perfect Group International Holdings (HK)
Limited transfer 100% equity interest of Hong Kong
Perfect Jewellery DMCC to DMCC (HK) and Hong
Kong Perfect Jewellery DMCC become a wholly owned
subsidiary of DMCC (HK).
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36. A 2> W) it & 2 W) B - A
© ML 4 R M TSR A L
8 LS 3 0 75X 7 o R

C ZEHMUNEARARNEATE R
JESE -

M 5Ea:  R20194E10H22H > 7% 48 3] i 6 7T 9 T
Z4 40 M SR B A BR 2 ) A A RE TR
R K ARAE Ay N R 117,450,000 00
(FH & 18129,866,000%k 7C) > H A A A<
S E — R G E AT o YL
Z A M R B AT RN A B — R
[ /NI N/NNEI o 1 2 ol < 0 )
JB N A R R AR 0 R R A R B AR AT IR
ONE KMl NEfE R R A
FR 2 7] HF H30% HE HE - B A E K 9
FE R HE 25 1 B T (2 (A 2= AE R
RE o e 52007 B g A A A "l HE N o

M EEb:  R20204F1H3H » DMCC (HK) it &
B ST B R ST > Lo — B A AR A
Al — 4 AR R R TE 202048
3HOHZ BNt BTl 2 &4 %
BE - B AL & A 4E B £ A DMCC (HK)
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37. RECONCILIATION OF
LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group
liabilities arising from financing activities. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as

cash flows from financing activities.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

37. & W B A E A AUz B R

3R FE A A S T RGOS ) T E AR AR

ZEE  MEEETELEZABRR
B & O sk R B R A
EHEAHSERERP S ELMEN
B eRE AE -

Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities loans payable Total
8 f R BRAT B HE £F 1B 8 #

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T

At 1 January 2019 #20194F1H1H 14,629 157,011 = 171,640
Financing cash flow lE B & & (8,301) (106,920) (54,000) (169,221)
Dividend declared EEHEIRKE - - 54,000 54,000
Interest accrued JE 1A B 948 - - 948
Addition of lease liabilities W g AR 8,401 = = 8,401
Effect of foreign exchange rate e = 5 B 2 3

changes (120) (832) - (952)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 H31H 15,557 49,259 = 64,816
Financing cash flow [EiR<g:Rergiig-:s (8,816) (51,578) (27,000) (87,394)
Dividend declared B E IR A = = 27,000 27,000
Interest accrued JE LA B 671 = = 671
Effect of foreign exchange rate e =< 5 ) 2 5

changes 344 2,319 - 2,663
At 31 December 2020 20204F12 A31H 7,756 = = 7,756
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F 17 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

38.

39.

200 Perfect Group International Holdings Limited %545 5 [0 42 i A Bl 23 )

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to owners through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged over the

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share
capital, share premium, retained profits and other
reserves as disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

Management of the Group reviews the capital
structure regularly. The Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issue as

well as the raising of bank loans.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis
on which income and expenses are recognised, in
respect of each class of financial assets and financial

liabilities are disclosed in note 3.

Categories of financial instruments

38.

39.

A A B

A% S T 7 3L A DU A A 9 LA T
A 10 P AR > Sl IR IR O 8 1 AL A
BHER T > T WA AT AR B 4 -
A S T 1) O SR R RS 4 A B A

A o

AR ) B S SRR ol R AR T B AN R
1 B HE AL B B IS A5 B B R BT
P 1 A~ BB s (PR B i A B
A 5 A o

AR B T g 2 AR LB AR SR
AL G B E A A RS BUEARN
A B JE B o Sl A A OR AE AR, - B AT
T e B AR AR AT LA > DA H A
BTN -

% TR
MAEBMBEERE MM EARREKERAN
R UK &7 % (645 7l sl FE 1
Al I YE K R R A B S R 2 )
G NERTAE L

S 85 T RO

2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T T
Financial assets ' E
Financial assets at amortised cost e G AR B IR 2 B 151,301 285,795
Derivative financial instruments 5 2 B4 T 1,023 -
Financial liabilities W% R
Amortised cost B 8 Bl AR 46,659 170,371




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
derivative financial instruments, trade and other
receivables, loan receivable from an associate, bank
balances and cash, deposits, trade and other payables,
bank loans and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as the
majority of the revenue were denominated in
functional currency of the relevant group entities.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end

of the reporting date are as follows:

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

39. % T H - 4

St 5 A B A PR H BR B BSR

7 A T Y B 5 TR 4 AR S B S
TH -~ 85 & H Al Rk -
s ARl Bk MITHBRLABEE
&~ "o M AT FH - RATE
BURMHEAME - ZFEWH TR
5 7 25 AH B B G R B R o AT B R SR T
B LA A Ja B 6 3 T 45 R B (B |
WL B K A A Ja ) > AR R B & U
B & S Ja By o A B T el 1 R% S L B
B LSRR R SC o A B R R B
% S A B o DARE R K IRy K A A i 8
A

B B

P 7 A 4 1 K 9B 23 Wi 2 DA A BR 4R 1R
e A 2 e B R (E - R AR S B B
HaWRBAR - REEHR > &
EEUSMEFHEEWREE XA
i T (L SR A

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T
Assets & P
HK$ T 2,562 6,435
RMB Nt 43 311
Dirham iR 354 5,781
Liabilities ffE
HKS$ T 31,705 365
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 39. W B T H - #

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Currency risk — continued

The Group mainly exposes to foreign currency of
RMB, HK$ and Dirham which are arising from
relevant group entities” foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities for the Group’s
operating activities. HK$ and Dirham, however, are
pegged to the functional currency of respective group
entities (i.e. United States dollar), hence the Group’s
exposure to currency risk is not significant and no
sensitivity analysis has been presented. No sensitivity
analysis for the currency risk of RMB is prepared as
the directors of the Company consider the net impact

of such foreign currency risk is insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate lease liabilities (see note 27
for details). The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities,
mainly interest-bearing bank balances and bank loans
(see note 28 for details) at variable interest rates.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need

arise.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group does not have any
outstanding bank loans and management considers
interest rate risk on bank balances to be insignificant.

Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
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S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A

B Ja b -

A S T A A8 8 3 B B AR B 4 R
LASN 5 (B A0 B W R B RS S
LIS TN NI DT & IR A )
B JE B o SR > Wk T B A L e B A%
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AR - K b A A B &R R
Y 30 0 #r o

7] L B

A 4 [ T B AT B B E M R B Y
28 B M R E B (RE 1 R RE27) - A
SE W IR R Z R RS M B E E R AR (
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7 8 (R I 52 B 5L 28) 1 2 4 B 1
B K 3% B R A R A o AR H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Given the long-term
relationships with its customers and the financial
position of these customers, management considers
that the credit risk associated with balances due from
wholesale customers is low. In addition, management
considers the customers’ credit history, settlement
patterns, subsequent settlements and aging analysis
of trade receivables in determining the allowance
for expected credit losses and ensures that adequate
allowance for expected credit losses are made for
irrecoverable amount. In this regard, the directors
of the Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in trade receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

39. % T H - 4

St % B\ B A B H B M BUSR - 4

e B0 B B ol EL R Al

filg 35 0 77 R RE Y &% 4F R JE AT I SE /Y
BAT - A 45 Bt 4 B i R I B &
FE WY B K AR B JE B 2 % 5 B R &R 5 T
BARWENWEEWRTE 57T &
AR SR B AN S R P E O AR
MEHEMK AREEFEERHE - F
BEHE R B A B AR Y > B AR BRI
BRAE AT B LB B {0 o MR A &
B PR A LA B B AR K% R F
(9 B B5 AR DL - A B RE B A AT B RE it
R & AR (5 B R B ARAK o 1S
L 25 8 R B Bk - AT S
A~ HAR &5 1 DL I B 5 B W sk T Y
AR % 7 Hr R E TH S B R A - 3
il AR E AN R s 1] 3R A R A TE Y
HREEEBEHE - Bt AEBEEHRF
o T R W 9 A A 4 T A A B L B

7 4R 7 B IR W R IR I 4 K £
i BB > A B R B o M 1 2 4 A
o
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — 39. W B T H - #

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

In relation to the loan receivable from an associate,
the Group regularly monitors the business
performance of the associate. The Group’s credit risks
in this balance is mitigated through the value of the
assets held by this entity and the power to participate
in the relevant activities of this entity. The directors
of the Company believe that there is no significant
increase in credit risk of the amount since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12m ECL. For the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL for loan
receivable from an associate was insignificant and

thus no loss allowance was recognised.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal as such

amounts are placed in banks with good reputation.

The credit risk exposure of the Group’s financial
assets are subject to ECL assessment. As at 31
December 2020, the gross carrying amount of
not credit-impaired trade receivable and credit-
impaired trade receivable with the loss allowance
measured at lifetime ECL is HK$51,560,000 (2019:
HK$94,259,000) and HK$9,883,000 (2019: HK$nil),
respectively; and the gross carrying amount of other
receivable, loan receivable from an associate and bank
balances and cash with the loss allowance measured at
12m ECL is HK$5,130,000 (2019: HK$2,144,000),
HK$13,718,000 (2019: HK$17,328,000), and
HK$81,201,000 (2019: HK$173,781,000),

respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

The Group applies the simplified approach in
HKFRS9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL for trade receivables.

Management assessed the ECL on trade receivables
by provision matrix based on shared credit risk
characteristics with reference to historical credit
loss experience, general economic conditions of
the industry in which the debtors operate and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its operation because
these customers consist of a large number of small
customers with common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. In addition, certain credit-impaired or
significant balances of trade receivables are assessed
for ECL individually. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk for trade

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

39. % T H - 4

St % B\ B A B H B M BUSR - 4
e BB S B AE WA - A

A B2 ) R 5 i e B SO R Y
b 77 ¥ st & B B 8 i soE 2 ) T
fr B 1H A s 1R 43 4

EHE2ZREGEEHELR &
B5 N K78 P A 47 36 2 B B AR IR L
B i A R A L S BIR O 8% R
Jrim 2z el wt o AR PR Ik A A5 B R B 4
F 48 4 B AT Al B B M WO 2 T
MEHEER -

e A% S 1 £ S B 5 9 2 — W )
R 9% % % 5 45 K B 3 R R B 4
Wz NEF - TR R R E
LB A 40 0 B0 BN R e o
A 2 OB 0 T N 2 O B 4T 5 A
B3 % PR 2 WA - B > T A
5 9 1 557 5 M6 W SCOFLFY K 4 6% )
TR 13 5 R A A o
2 108 47 B 525 B A ORL £ 9% B 2
E

receivables:
Year ended 31 December 2020 B, F20204:12H31H 1L 4 )
Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate  allowance amount
IR AEE FRHEEERE  BEEBEA  REDFEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T s o0 T ¥ 0 T 0
Trade receivables & 7 I 7K TE
0-90 days past due i #1090 K 50,523 4.76% (2,404) 48,119
91-180 days past due i #1191-180 K 1,121 16.50% (185) 936
Over 180 days past due R 180 K 9,799 77.57% (7,601) 2,198
61,443 (10,190) 51,253
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

39. M T H - ¥

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A

{5 B B S e 7T A - AR

Year ended 31 December 2019 B E2019F12 A31H 1-4F B
Gross

carrying Average Loss Net carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
REAAE FRYEHESE  EHEREBEHE REOFHE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T 7T T T# T

Trade receivables F 5 e K TE
0-90 days past due i #10-90 K 89,683 0.51% (459) 89,224
91-180 days past due w 4191-180 K 2,467 9.24% (228) 2,239
Over 180 days past due %1 9] R A 180 K 2,109 48.84% (1,030) 1,079
94,259 (1,717) 92,542

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated. Due to greater financial
uncertainty triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged

pandemic could led to increased credit default rates.

i w1 G 18 2R T 3 R B N R TE 1 AR
) 1 o8 B AR T A A SR AL R
e B R A B R AR B 5% )R AT LS
F IR T Rl R B o A B 2 AR
w A% AR AL DARE FR R E B N A B
HORLC M R o 201976 IR 96 B
BEE 51 B SR BN R R
FoF 4B B0 B A0 SR I ) SR B R =
A T O 1S hn A AR Y TE O R R R o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided HK$10,190,000 (2019: HK$1,717,000)
impairment allowance for trade receivables, based
on the provision matrix and individual assessment.
Impairment allowance of HK$7,863,000 (2019:
HK$Nil) and HK$2,327,000 (2019: HK$1,717,000)
were made on credit-impaired and not credit-impaired

debtors, respectively.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
under the simplified approach.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

39. % T H - 4

St % B\ B A B H B M BUSR - 4
e BB S B AE WA - A

B E20204E12 H31H L4 > AEER
5 485 AR R R A N B A S R S E iR

TH w2 3 (E # #510,190,000% JT (2019
11,717,000 JT) o & B A G B W
B K 915 B B (E 51 42 W (8 # # 5 Al
547,863,000 JC (20194 © & # JC) &
2,327,000 7G (20194F © 1,717,000% 7T) °

‘F%’z%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂt%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ&
HEWEYMHEMEEEHRED -

Lifetime ECL
(not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired) (credit-impaired) Total
SRR 2 W
15 B & # 5 B 8
(k55 B W) (fF5 B Bk ) o
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T SR T 0
As at 31 December 2018 2018412 /131 H 971 887 1,858
Charges due to trade receivables 201941 A1H TR E 5 JE
recognised as at 1 January 2019 U5 IEZi H
— impairment losses recognised = [EA TJE 2 (E fiﬁ\ 1,013 - 1,013
New financial assets originated or R E%}\ M58 4 BB E
purchased 413 - 413
Written offs i 84 (680) (887) (1,567)
As at 31 December 2019 #20194F12 1311 1,717 = 1,717
Changes due to financial ﬁ/\ZOZOJ@FlH 1H [F i 52 4 @l
instruments recognised as at THZ 5%
1 January 2020
— Transfer to credit-impaired — R (G E (1,277) 1,277 =
— Impairment losses recognised ~ — £ i 72 ¥k {H 5 12 155 - 155
— Impairment losses reversed — W 18 (193) = (193)
New financial assets originated or AT AN &M EE
purchased 1,925 6,586 8,511
As at 31 December 2020 #20204£12 H31H 2,327 7,863 10,190
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F 7 S 5 A B
For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - 39. M T H - ¥
continued
Financial risk management objectives 1 B R\ B A BE H R R BUR -
and policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — 15 B0 JE Ber S v FF A — 48
continued
The Group writes off a trade receivable when there i B & kLB R BB N B R OB
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe # H I 4 B P 0 IR AT RE M (] A s
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect EHAME BRI T EABERF > 3
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed B 5y I i i T a0 = AR (LA
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy BHEZRBE) WALEHKARE S
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are over JRE WA K T B o

three years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment —
continued

In determining the ECL for other receivables and
deposits, management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual assessment
on the recoverability of deposits and other receivables
based on the historical default experience and
forward-looking information, as appropriate, for
example, the Group has considered the consistently
low historical default rate in connection with
payments, and concluded that credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding other receivables and deposits

are insignificant.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group has available unutilised bank facilities of

HK$397,758,000 (2019: HK$353,500,000).

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

39. % T H - 4

St % B\ B A B H B M BUSR - 4
e BB S B AE WA - A

L E A Wi sk K R e 2 T
fREEHEN S - A %88 BRI
1 AT Bk MR I R R (R
S5 19 5 e HL A B WA ER TH 22 AT i Je] A A
7 7E W1 B 8 AT Al R AW B R A Bl
A5 1 2 7% 8 B A B 3R A A R 2
R AR Sl AR AS B T OR iR
1 A i BROH K 1% & 2 B AR B
Ja\ gz S A K

B & A

A\ HE S 2B E & R By K
EhREEE  HECEIEHENVME
Bam B EMERDEEARERD
Mot ERHESDEREE S E M
T B o AN AR B R A R E B
BATALE R EMMEERE > B8R
BEEREN KEEN B SRR
VT B BA BS A K B E B O R
M4 3O B & & EUBR o R20204F12H
31H » AL BT H KRB ARITME S
397,758,000 JC (20194F : 353,500,000
L) o
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F 7 S 5 A B

For the year ended 31 December 2020

#]ZE 2020 4 12 H 31 HIL4EF

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives

and policies — continued

Liquidity risk — continued

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up to reflect the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest

date on which the Group can be required to pay. The

Ui ) L B -
TR A
BRI o T AR PR A S A R
18R Y B B E o LR B B
{3 05 R 1 BB & 0 o F R I R 4
FMERASHEWRE -

table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

39. W% T H — 4

S 0 A B A PR HOBR B BOSR - A

2
BB SRR B B

Weighted ~ On demand ~ Over 1 year Over 2 years Total
average interest or less than  but not more  but not more undiscounted  Carrying
rate lyear than2years thanSyears  cash flows amount
RGERK BB-F0 GBEER
SRR SREER  SREEN  RERRE
Ik SRS @ g KE HEAR W i
% HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#n T n T T T
Financial liabilities J B FL IR
At 31 December 2020 2020412131
Trade and other payables B R A SR - 46,659 - - 46,659 46,659
Lease liabilties HEAHR 5.05 4414 1895 2,020 8,329 7,756
51,073 1,895 2,020 54,988 54,415
Financial liabilities IR Y
At 31 December 2019 #2095 1231H
Trade and other payables B 5 B M £ 3 - 121,112 = = 121,112 121,112
Bank loans RITR 356 50,741 - - 50,741 49,059
Lease liabilties Hfak 5.05 8,798 4,299 3,675 16772 15,557
180,651 4299 3,675 188,625 185,928
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Financial risk management objectives
and policies — continued

Other price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk through its

investments in certain raw material future contracts
which are classified as derivative financial instruments
as set out in note 23. The directors of the Company
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the

risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based
on the exposure to price risk of the underlying raw
material at the reporting date. If the prices of the
respective underlying raw material had been 5%
(2019: N/A) lower/higher, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/
decrease by HK$122,000 (2019:N/A) as a result of the

changes.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash

flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values at

the end of each reporting period.

B3 A 5 o B

For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS -

continued

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair

values of these financial assets are determined.

39. M T H - ¥

AREE %A FHEH B2 MBE &
N S

A5 A T B R T R R TS
e E R o TR A B 0]
E %I EE R AT E R

Fair value
A F A
2020 2019
20204 20194  Fair value Valuation techniques
HK$°000 HK$’000  hierarchy and key inputs

T oo T T AP Al 0B K 3 A bR
Financial assets
B
(i) Financial derivative 1,023 - Level 2 Quoted bid prices of underlying

instruments at FVTPL commodity in an active market

(i) A RMEFARGZ Y SR2R% T R T 35 AH B R A B0 B HRE

i A T A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

40. OPERATING LEASE 40. REBMBEKE
COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessor A5 AR 2 AN
The property held for rental purposes have committed FrfE 2 A AR EEZ K
lessees for the next seven years. F oo
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as HEZ B EBEERENT:
follows:
2020 2019
20204F 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Within one year — N 8,092 5,223
In the second year 5 4R 6,045 4,421
In the third year B= 4,735 2,948
In the fourth year 5 0 4F 3,777 2,336
In the fifth year 5 AR 2,714 868
In the sixth year BN A 2,714 475
In the seventh year H-E4E - 398
28,077 16,669
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4F 12 A 31 HIR4EE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 41. A 2 w) B %5 R O &K
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T 0 T T

Non-current asset R EEE
Interest in subsidiaries T a2 ) A HE 5 348,781 348,681

Current assets B EE
Other receivables and prepayments At W 3K CTE B TR A 3O 585 433
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE Wi B B8 A ) K IH 37,860 104,010
Bank balances AT &5 681 1,936
39,126 106,379
Current liabilities N N=E =

Accruals and other payables JRE B T R HG At A 3KIH 688 757
Amounts due to subsidiaries ﬁ? A5} B & s R 3 100 37,137
788 37,894
Net current assets Uit B & E TR 38,338 68,485
Total assets less current liabilities B AR W B A S 387,119 417,166

Share capital and reserves % A K fiki g
Share capital B A 4,500 4,500
Reserves (note) i i CBEE 5F) 382,619 412,666
387,119 417,166
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
#2020 4 12 A 31 HIRFE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 41. A oy W) B 5 R Dl -
POSITION OF THE COMPANY -
continued
Note: fff 53 -
Movement of reserves fiff 5 52 W)
Share
Share Special options Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ety FeRIGEfE BEBCREREME  REWEA 4

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T Tt T Tt T

At 1 January 2019 #2019 1 H1H 93,840 278,804 11,261 43,196 427,101
Total comprehensive income  4F JA] 42 A7 Ui 4 #8 4

for the year — - - 38,162 38,162
Dividend (note 12) JB B (B 3E12) - - - (54,000) (54,000)
Recognition of equity-settled ffE 5@ AME 4 45 34 DA

share-based payment JBE A5 3 AT FROH

(note 31) (B 3E31) - = 1,403 = 1,403
Share option cancelled and i /IR HE 51 £ K g 43

transferred to retained 2 LR 8 A

profits (note 31) (Fff 5£31) - = (23) 23 -
At 31 December 2019 20194E12 31 H 93,840 278,804 12,641 27,381 412,666

Total comprehensive expense 4F A1 42 1] B 3¢ #8 %

for the year - - - (3,047) (3,047)
Dividend (note 12) e 2 (B RE12) - - - (27,000) (27,000)
Share option cancelled and 1 & HE ¥ 61§ % 4 3¢

transferred to retained Rl Ri ]

profits (note 31) (K 5E31) - = (2,440) 2,440 =
At 31 December 2020 #20204F12 A31H 93,840 278,804 10,201 (226) 382,619
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Financial Summary

S 5 R 22

The following is a summary of the published results and R G A G E A A TR B B
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial WL LEELABEME -

years.

For the years ended 31 December

B E12H31H L4
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194F 20184F 20174E 20164F

HK$’000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tt T T AR T o T T

Revenue g 366,927 787,207 522,005 352,043 322,423
Gross profit £ F 152,379 294,364 167,985 110,184 88,944
Profit for the year 4 A T 76,490 182,651 71,572 48,075 34,699

As at 31 December

®12H31H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194F 20184 20174F 20164F

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T# L Tt T %5 T o T T

Total assets & A 852,966 1,089,719 1,064,020 586,802 486,654
Total liabilities & A 201,333 530,305 505,685 65,854 73,714
Net assets EEFE 651,633 559,414 558,335 520,948 412,940
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